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Growing banking portfolio supports ﬁnanciajlyl
“sound and profitable institution RE

Products and services that meet
customer needs

B SHINSEI BANK

Institutional Banking
Corporate/Financial Institutions Banking

Loan Origination Retail Banking

Non-Recourse Finance The PowerFlex Account

Project Finance Shinsei Financial Centers
Securitization 24x7 Banking via: _ ~
Corporate Advisory/Mergers and Restructurings International ATM Network - .
Asset Management PowerDirect Internet B‘a_‘nking

PowerCall Telepho‘ne:Ba'nkin
PowerSmart Housing Loans



Summary of Events since the Inaugufation of Shinsei Bank

152000

. March New bank launched .
New Board of Directors and ma‘nagemeht appointed
. April . Commencement of counter sales of investment trusts o .
- May Commencement of three-year coupon debenture issuance (market offermg)
. June Name changed from The Long—Term Credlt Bank of Japan, Limited, to Shinsei Bank, Limited
. ‘ Introduction of management information system (MIS}
. Commencement of monthly accounts closing
[il[y - ... Adoption of new human resources system (based on the three pillars of performance-based reward,
- * - decentralized authority over appointments and proactive utilization of external human resources)
" October Commencement of cooperation with the postal savings system (automatic tefler machine (ATM)

networks, fund transfers) .

November ~ Start of operation of wide area network (WAN) connecting all domestic offices (for data and voice
traffic)
Cooperation with six trust banks (ATM networks)

¢
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| 42001 Lo ‘ v ;
, May Commencement of operatlons by Shmseu Securmes Co Ltd ‘ ‘g
. dune © Start of new retail bankmg services &
! " Launch of PowerFlex comprehenswe account ; %
o Open ing of Shinsei Financial Center (H ead Ofﬂce) 55 ;
Launch of Internet banking ‘ - vg
P . Start of 24-hour/365-day ATM serwce §'
duly Opening of Hibiya Branch. : 2
August Extension of retail branch busmess hours to 7:00 p.m. §'
.- September ‘Extensmn of. post office ATM operating hours (to 11: 00 p.m. on weekdays; also open on holidays) é
=

' December . Commencement of ATM tie-up with 1Y Bank Co., Ltd.
S Opemqg of Roppongi and Meguro branches
" Collateralized loan obligation (CLO) program launched, ¥115 billion in securities issued
Yahoo! Café opened at Head Office
Introduction of five-year yen time deposit

| 2002 :

, Janvary . Establishment of lnstrtut«onal Bankmg Group

.Febru‘ary: " Introduction. of 10- -year yen time dep051t

- ‘ - Offering of PowerSman‘housmg loans

March Establishment of Wealth: Management Division

) ATM tie- -up wnth Keihin Electric Express Railway Co., Ltd.
_ ‘April‘ B o “Estabhshm,ent of Corporate Revitalization Team

uly Opening of Hiroo Branch



Ata Glance

At a Glance

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
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Consolidated Financial Highlights

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Subsidiaties
For the Years Ended March 31, 2002 and 2001

Millions of
Billions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
For the Year
Total income ‘ ¥ 246.5 ¥ 308.0 $ 1,851.0
Total Expenses 206.2 217.0 1,548.2
Income before Income Taxes and Minority interests 40.3 90.9 302.8
Net income o ' 61.2 90.4 459.6
Per Share (in Yen and U.S. Dollars) ' :
Net Income _ o . ¥ 2111 ¥ 31.87 $ 0.16
Cash Dividends: __—
Common Stock 1.11 1.11 0.01
Preferred Stock: ‘ ' _

Series 2 13.00 13.00 0.10

Series 3 ‘ ‘ . 4.84 4.84 0.04
Total Stockholders' Equity . 105.50 90.52 0.79
Balances at Year-End
Total Assets : ) ¥8,069.5 ¥9,485.7 $60,582.2
Loans and Bills Discounted . 4,801.9 6,187.3 36,050.3
Debentures 2,786.3 3,670.4 20,918.5 -
Deposits, Including NCDs 2,260.7 3,218.8 16,972.6 ,
Total Stockholders’ Equity ' E 623.5 582.8 4,681.1 L |
Ratios (%) : {
Return on Total Stockholders’ Equity : 10.90% 19.06% ’
Return on Total Assets ‘ ' 0.74 0.83 I
Capital Adequacy Ratio (Domestic Criteria) 17.04 16.99 n

Nates: 1. Unless otherwise specified, dollar figures in this annual report refer to U.S. currency and are presented solely for the reader’s convenience, U.S.
dollar amounts are translated at ¥133.20=U5$1.00, the rate of exchange prevailing on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market on March 29, 2002.
2. Since all yen figures have been truncated rather than rounded, the totals do not necessarily agree with the sum of the individual amounts.
3. Cash dividends are declared on both common stock and preferred stock.

r : Forward-Looking Statements Y ) N

This annual report contains statements that constitute forward-loaking statements. These statements appear in a number of places in this annual report and

include statements regarding our intent, belief, or current expectations and/or the current belief or current expectations of our officers with respect to the results
of our operations and the financial condition of the Bank and its subsidiaries. Such statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and are
subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our forward-looking stétements are not a guarantee of future performance and involve risks and
uncertainties, and actual results may differ from: those in such forward-looking statements as a result of various factors.



To Ouy Customsrs,'?éﬂners and Stakeholders

To Qur Customérs, Partners and Stakeholders:

N

As | review the 12-month period ended March 31, 2002, | am pleased to report that Shinsei
Bank’s performance has exceeded our expectations. Despite a tumultuous global situation,
we are encouraged by our achievements, which go a long way to showing that our strategy is
the right one for Shinsel.

Challenges often bring to the front new ideas and new solutions, and that is certainly the
case at Shinsei. As we report on our progress in fiscal 2001 and plan for the coming year, we
look forward to continuing to improve the asset quality of the Bank and offering our retail and
corporate customers new and innovative ideas, products and services, while maintaining our
policy of openness and transparency.

All of our efforts are aimed at buiiding better banking for Japan.

Strong Financial Results

Financially, fiscal 2001 was a good year, with consolidated net income of ¥61.2 billion. In
fiscal 2000, net income was ¥90.4 billion, but if a ¥55.0 billion non-recurring gain from the
sale of equity portfolio to the Deposit Insurance Corporation of Japan (DIC) were excluded,
the amount would have been ¥35.4 billion. Therefore, on an adjusted basis, we recorded an



“AII of our efforts are almed at building better
- banking for Japan.”

increase in consolidated net income of 73%. On a non-consolidated basis, net income was
¥60.7 billion, which was 61% higher than the target we set in the Plan for Restoring Sound
Management, submitted to the Japanese government in March 2000,

The capital adequacy ratio remained high, at 17.04% (on a consolidated basis, using
domestic criteria) as of March 31, 2002.

Along with these financial achievements, we also moved forward on some important
goals.

Implementation of the New Business Model

There is a significant new spirit at the Bank. The clarity of our aims and the successes that
we have so far experienced have generated a new entrepreneurial culture. Shinsei employ-
ees are driving many of our strategic plans at a faster rate than we had anticipated.

In institutional banking, Shinsei has delivered on increasing its presence m new financial
products for companies in Japan, as well as broadening the streams of income for the Bank.
For example, we executed an innovative mortgage-backed securitization and a CLO program. i

To enhance service quality, the relationship managemént and product divisions were i'
integrated into a single Institutional Banklng Group, and a special team was created for )
corporate revitalization business. As a consequence of these and other value-adding activi- l
ties, non-interest income accounted for more than 30% of gross business profit, compared |
with just 15% the previous year.

In retail banking, Shinsei’s customer-focused approach is attracting a growing number of
Japanese individuals. We launched the new retail bank in June 2001, offering a comprehen-
sive Powerflex account, and since then have been rofling out a variety of innovative products
and services. In addition to the Bank's newly designed branch network, Shinsei's Internet
bank, call centers and ATMs provide 24x7 service to our customers. Also, various ATM
network alliances have been established to enhance customer convenience.

SIAPIOYINELS PUE SIBUHEA ‘SIAWONN) N 0L

“We certainly have come a long way in a short
~time, but there remains much to do.”

improved Asset Quality threugh Focused Lending

All these developments mean that we have now a wide range of servicing capabilities to meet
our customers' changing and diversified needs while boosting our earning power. However,
what is especially important is that we have continued to improve the quality of the assets
that underlie the Bank. The Bank's non-performing loans decreased more than ¥180 billion
in fiscal 2001. They still represented 20% of total loan assets as of March 31, 2002, and our -
target is to reduce the ratio to around the 5% level in the near future.
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The risk management and assessment functions are core elements of our banking
discipline. By deploying our advanced management information systems, we are able to
quickly and effectively assess risk at Group level, allowing the various business units of the
Bank to structure transactions more accurately while applying adequate pricing to risk.

Building Better Banking

When Shinsel began in its present form, its aims were very clear: improve the asset quality of
the Bank; adopt the best global ideas and practices on banking; and focus on expanding the
Bank’s skills in two specific areas—institutional banking and retail banking. We also pledged
to apply the maost transparent globa!l best practices to Shinsei’s reporting and corporate
governance.

We certainly have come a long way in a short time, but there remains much to do. The
needs of the market segments that we are targeting—Japanese retail banking customers and
Japanese institutional customers—are continuing to evolve even as Shinsei changes and
improves. Of course our success going forward will depend on our financial health and
strength. But fundamentally, we must continue to show that Shinsei is focused on building
better banking for Japan, leading in creating a new financial environment.

“In building a better Shinsei, we will become
more attractive to our customers, our partners,
our employees and to the business and social
communities in which we operate.”

Better banking means providing businesses and institutions with choices and products
that allow them to better fund and plan their economic future. They need creative solutions
and new ways to structure, finance and manage funding requirements and risk. On pages
12-15 of this report, we describe how Shinsei is attracting institutional customers in every
area. «
Better banking also means ensuring retail customers can enjoy a relationship with Shinsei
that allows them to manage their funds in the best way possible. They should have easier
access to accounts, flexibility, responsiveness, and most importantly, choice in the way they
want to bank. Take a look at pages 16-17 of this report for a more detailed description of our
retail banking strategy.

By focusing on our chosen market segments, Shinsei intends to show superior financial
and operating performance, improve its financial strength and ratings, and pursue listing in
the future. In building a better Shinsei, we will becorne more attractive to our customers, our
partners, our employees and to the business and social communities in which we operate.

July 2002

Masamaoto Yashiro
Chairman, President and CEO




0&A with-Shinsei 'B“anlk’s CED

C.

Q: You've entitled your annual report “Better Banking”—in
what way is Shinsei’s approach better?

A + Shinsei wants to create a bank that provides better choice, better
services and new ideas to our retail and institutional customers. The Japa-
nese market is undergoing tremendous change—retail customers are far
more interested in how best 1o manage their financial future. They aren’t
satisfied with just the minimum. Better banking for them means things like
commission-free services, 24-hour convenience, and competitive interest
rates. Institutions, too, are facing new challenges resulting from a prolonged
recession and continuing needs to better handle debt and balance sheet
issues. Shinsei aims to offer these customers innovative solutions rather than
the “plain vanilla” lending products. Overall, we want Shinsei to be a leader
in creating a whole new environment in the Japanese financial services
sector.

Q: What is Shinsei Bank's distinguishing characteristic?

A « We're proud of how we are combining various skills and approaches to build a
better bank for both retail and institutional customers. For example, Shinsei is using
the best Japanese and Western banking practices, maintaining Japanese cultural
ideals of commitment, equality and harmony, while incorporating Western models of
efficiency and competition. Shinsei is also a hybrid between a commercial bank and
an investment bank, providing more customized banking services and products
tailored to the individual needs of the customer. Furthermore, Shinsei has achieved
diversity in its management team, drawing the best people with & range of back-
grounds and skilis, in order to ensure ongoing innovation and strong leadership in the
future.

Q: The end to public guarantees of savings deposits in April
2002 doesn’t sound like a positive development for Japanese
consumers—why do you say this will benefit consumers in the
long run?

A + The new deposit insurance rules still protect savings up to ¥10 million of time
deposits in a single account, while encouraging individuals to identify alternative ways
to invest their savings above that amount. The key here is that individuals are now
much more likely to take advantage of a wider range of investment choices, including
more careful selection of the banks they do business with. They will focus on sound-
ness and transparency of banks, adding pressure on management. To attract new

retail customers, banks will have to become more efficient and competitive, providing

better products and services. The best banks will be those that meet consumers’
needs in a cost-effective and user-friendly manner. This will create stronger and more
responsive financial institutions. That's what we're counting on here at Shinsei Bank,
and that’s why we are introducing new products and services that have never before
been offered in the Japanese marketplace.

030 SHUPEHIasuNS Y3M v3D




Q&A with Shinsei Bank’s CEO

Q: Shinsei Bank is a recent entrant to the already
crowded Japanese retail banking market—how will you
attract customers?

A s It's pretty simple to me—we have to be the best bank for retail
customners! For years the Japanese retail banking customer wasn't really

given any choice as to what was available where they banked. A survey shows
that many customers are not satisfied with Japanese retail banking. The
environment is now changing and Shinsei is going to lead. Qur Powerflex
retail banking accounts are functional, valuable tools that put a lot of services
into the hands of depositors. As customers have gotten more sophisticated
and demanding, we see their reaction to this approach. Powerflex saw
150,000 accounts established in less than one year. The other services are
similarly geared to treat depositors as valuable customers—our financial centers are welcom-
ing, our call centers are efficient and friendly, and we've changed the hours of operation of
many of our branches to coincide with times when our customers want to use them. Internet
transactions are now free of charge, as are certain ATM transactions. Our leading-edge
technology and low cost structure have enabled us to implement these services. We are
committed to providing good value on basic transactional banking services.

Q: Part of your strategy for serving institutional customers is devel-
oping and offering new products. What specific ideas do you have?
Furthermore, do you think this will have anything to do with an in-
crease in profits other than interest margins?

A + Our institutional clients need more than a traditional commercial Jending arrangement—
which has largely become a commodity product anyway. Shinsei is rapidly building a portfolio
of sophisticated and innovative financing services that meet customers’ needs. For years this
area was dominated by European and U.S. investment banks which benefited from the
better profitability and returns of assets generated by these value-added approaches.
Mareover, the problems related to the financing of corporate customers are not simply ones
of funding. Balance sheets need to be streamlined, and there is an increasing need to
dispose of non-essential assets. We provide various products and services, such as
securitization, non-recourse financing, credit derivatives and asset management, that
increase profitability without adding to asset growth. These businesses have grown signifi-
cantly, contributing to the increase in our non-interest income, which represented about 30%
of total gross business profit in the last fiscal year.



Q: What does “pricing credit risk appropriately” really mean?

A: It means that an institution is adequately compensated for the potential loss it incurs
when it lends money to a customer ar counterparty. We don't think that the current corporate
loan market is adequately pricing risk—which is why the current returns in the Japanese
loan market are low or non-existent. It is important to improve loan portfolios so that they
have a proper risk-adjusted return. Maintaining an existing business relationship is impor-
tant, but without appropriate risk management, neither the profitability nor the health of the
bank will improve and this puts depositors and investors at risk. Therefore, we discuss and.
negotiate with customers to secure a return that matches the risk. When we find interest
income alone would not be sufficient for the risk taken, we try either to generate revenues
from other products and services, or to reduce the risk in some way. Other banks have also
begun to move in the same direction, and we believe that understanding of proper risk return
throughout the financial market is deepening.

Q: Shinsei received a business improvement order in September
2001 from the Japanese Financial Services Agency related to its
targets for lending to small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs).
What was the Bank's response?

AI QOur commitment to small and medium-sized businesses is strong. | chair our commit-
tee to promote such lending and we made the utmost effort to achieve the lending target set
in March 2002, Our effort ted to an increase in lending volume of about ¥120 billion as of
March 31, 2002. We exceeded our mandated target of an ¥18.2 billion increase-—as we
stayed within a risk profile that allows us to lend with confidence.




The Shinsei Bank Management Team

The Shinsei Bank Management Team ' :

Chairman, President and CEO
Masamote Yashiro

Senior Managing Director

CF i i i
Hidebumi Mori 0, Senior Corporate Executive Officer

David M. Fite

Iy

Teruaki Yamamoto K°i°h_"° Nakaya ‘ Janak Raj
Senior Managing Director, Tadashi (shikuro Relationship Group ' Risk Management Group
Institutional Banking Group Directar, Corporate Banking
Business Sub-Group
(As of June 28, 2002)
Board of Directors and Statutory Auditors
Chairman and President Masamoto Yashiro
Senior Managing Director Hidebumi Mori
Senior Managing Director Teruaki Yamamoto
Director Tadashi Ishikuro
Director Timothy C. Collins CEQ, Ripplewood Holdings, LLC
Director J. Christopher Flowers Vice Chairman, The Enstar Group, Inc.
Director Akira Aoki Counselor, Japan Securities Finance Co., Lid.
Director Takashi Imai Chairman, Nippon Steel Corporation
Director Minoru Makihara Chairman, Mitsubishi Corporation
Director Nobuaki Ogawa Lawyer
Director Michael J. Boskin Professor, Stanford University
Director Emilic Botin Chairman, Bance Santander Central Hispano SA
Director Donald B. Marron Chairman, UBS America
Director Martin G. McGuinn Chairman and CEQ, Mellon Financia) Corporation
Director David Rockefeller
Standing Statutory Auditor Koji Saito
Statutory Auditor Akira Sudo CPA
Statutory Auditor Makiko Yasuda Lawyer




institutional Banking Group
Brian F. Prince

Financiaf Institutions Business Sub-Group
Masazumi Kato

Jun Daikuhara
Asset Management Service Division

Senior Advisors

Banking {nfrastructure Group
Dhananjaya Dvivedi

Ey

Chief of Staff, Retail Banking Group
K. Sajeeve Thomas

o ,S_a:tom.Katayam
Retail Bank Sub-Group

Senior Advisor . Paul A. Volcker . -
Senior Advisor T Vernon E. Jordan, Jr.
Senior Advisor John S. Reed

- Maraging Director, Lazard Fréres & Co. LLC

Corporate Executive Officers

CEO

Senior Managing Director

Senior Managing Director, Institutional Banking Group -
Director, Corporate Banking Business Sub-Group ~
CFO, Senior Corporate Executive Officer

Chief of Staff, Retail Banking Group

Banking Infrastructure Group

Institutional Banking Group

Risk Management Group

Relationship Group

Financial Institutions Business Sub-Group

Retail Bank Sub-Group

Asset Management Service Division

Masamoto Yashiro
Hidebumi Mori
Teruaki Yamamoto
Tadashi Ishikuro
David M. Fite
K. Sajeeve Thomas
Dhananjaya Dvivedi
Brian F. Prince
Janak Raj
Koichiro Nakaya
‘Masazumvi Kato '

~$un Daikuhara
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Building a Better Bank for Our fnstitutional Customers
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Building a Better Bank for Qur Institutional Customers

“Institutional customers want more than just products—they want
( solutions to a variety of complex financing issues. Shinsei is leading the
way in Japan to bring the best products, services and know-how to the
challenges facing our customers today.”

' Teruaki Yamamato
Senior Managing Director, Brian F. Prince f8
institutional Banking Group Institutional Banking Group ¢ __

A Busy Year for the Institutional Banking Group
Major achievements at the Group level in fiscal 2001 included:

& creation of the Institutional Banking Group, in which customer relationship and product
groups were joined into a unified, powerful banking team that leverages deep customer
relationships and innovative banking skills to the maximum

<3 multiple cutting-edge transactions, demonstrating the effectiveness of an integrated and
skill-based approach

& a significant increase in non-interest income.

Established in January 2002, our new Institutional Banking Group continued to provide high-
quality lending products, while strengthening our ability to meet changing customer needs.
We teamed relationship managers specialized in particular industries and companies with
product experts who understand the whale scope of investment banking technology.

These changes have enabled us to create strategic and customized solutions ta our
corporate customers’ financial requirements, including balance sheet management. We also
expanded our work with financial institutions, providing investment opportunities through
debentures, deposits and new fund products, as well as innovative balance sheet restructur-
ing solutions. Consequently, non-interest income for the Bank rose from 14.7% of gross
business profit in fiscal 2000, to 30.6% in fiscal 2001.

Because of our strong balance sheet and sophisticated risk assessment capabilities,
we have also been able to assist customers undergoing more extensive restructuring.

The Institutional Banking Group facilitated numerous large-scale divestments of a variety of
customer assets, businesses and risks, including loans, real estate and mortgage origination
operations.

" 'New Products + Strong Relatmnshlps = Results

Shinsei Banks strength lies in provrdrng cuttmg -edge investment banking products and .
. services to a wide and diverse range of customers—both established and new. The

teamwork between our relatronshlp managers and product specrahsts resulted in '

NUMEerous groundbreakrng deals in fiscal 2001, Following are some examples.

3 A Benchmark Non-Recourse Loan ™~

Shinsei Bank has been an active playerin developing the Japanese non-recourse
lending business, offering regular and specialized loans to & geographically diverse
range of customers. A group of Shinsei customers, including ITOCHU Corporation,
KAJIMA CORPORATION and Urban Corporation, were working to redevelop the
Naniwaza Theater, a landmark in Osaka. The Bank's relationship managers and non-’
recourse lending group worked with the development group to understand the project,
the market and the unique financial needs of this transaction to structure one of the flrst
non- recourse constructeon loans in Japan. - R :

12
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O A New anate Equtty Fund R
Shinsei Bank estabhshed a prtvate equrty team rn earty 2002 hrnng lndustry experts }
with international expenence to lead it. The new team quickly began tookmg for the best ‘

opportunities and partners in the market Again, strong teamwork between the Bank's "

relationship managers and product expérts ylelded good results Shlnsel Bank and -
ITOCHU, a Japanese trading company ‘and tong—trme Shinsei ' customer agreed to Jomtly

create a pnvate equrty fund whlch they launched m Juty 2002 Thrs fund wrtl teverage "

tTOCHU s exterisive network in various mdustnes to bnng ShInSEI Bank's expertnse to' .
new customers especratly small and “medium- srzed enterpnses We W|H continue to seek

" out and work with thé best partners i the fmarket'to’ provrde superior products and
servrces to our customers i

B P

Institutional Banking: Fiscal 2001 Review

Specialty Finance

The Specialty Finance Division continued to build a strong, diverse and seasoned team,
which has engaged in a wide variety of financing opportunities. During fiscal 2001, Shinsei
provided customers with non-recourse financing for every major property type, including
office, retail, residential and hotel properties, as well as for distressed assets. We saw robust
year-on-year growth in origination volume, fee income and portfolio income.

Shinsei has a strong presence among Japanese and foreign investors. In the coming year,
further growth is expected as non-recourse financing becomes more widely accepted in
Japan. In addition, new offerings in the sale-leaseback area, small loan originations and
corporate restructurings for off-balance-sheet financing will contribute to market expansion.

In the project and leveraged financing area, Shinsei is an active agent in increasing
the pace of transformation of Japanese business. As the financing infrastricture to support
this transformation takes shape—through expansion of the initial public offering (IPO)
market, growth of start-up funding opportunities, legislative reforms and convergence of
accounting principles—new approaches to this increasingly comptex business environment
are being sought. '

Shinsei is committed to providing quality solutions to these new challenges. We offer
global-standard project finance, leveraged buy-out and management buy-out financing .
services, backed by top-notch analysis and risk management techniques deve(oped by
leading project flnance professronats wnth g(obat experience and msrght

Securitization and Loan Trading

Despite the lack of deal volume in the market, Shinsei established a leadership position in
the mongage—backed secuntrzatron market. Dreams Fundrng, a residential mortgage backed
securities (RMBS) transaction, is 6ne example of how we are succeedtng in this area.
Shinsei's strong balance sheet enabled the purchase of Darhyaku Mutual Lifé Insurance
Company's residential loan business. The loan portfoho was securitized in August 2001, with
¥73.5 billion of securities issued, leveraging our market and customer knowledge, and our
network of target end investors. Dreams Funding was the second largest RMBS transaction
in Japan in the past 12 months. Sole-managed by Shinsei Securities, the deal represents a
major step in realizing the Bank’s ambition to be a ieader in providing innovative and
complete solutions for complex securitization challenges. ' :

Securitization Industry Awards

Received in 2001

& IFR: 2001 Japanese
Securitization Award—Deal! of
the Year

(3 FinanceAsia: 2001 Best
Securitization Deal in Japan

& EuroWeek: 2001 Best
Securitization of Japanese
Assets

O Asiamoney. Japan Asset-
Backed Deal of the Year, 2001

& Nikkei Bond & Financial
Weekly: 2001 Deal of the Year
Runner-Up

SI31LDISNY) [EUDRNISY) NG 0} yueg sapeg e Sujpling



Building a Better Bank for Our Institutional Customers
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Our asset-backed securitization (ABS) team has established a strong execution capability
in a wide range of asset types, including leases, corporate loans, consumer loans, trade
receivables and small business loans. In addition to transactions for customers, we launched
a CLO master trust funding program—the first for a Japanese bank—to diversify and stabilize
funding sources by estzblishing access to the global capital markets. The Bank entrusted
approximately ¥1.4 trillion of corporate loans to the master trust. In December 2001, ¥115
billion in securities were issued, backed by a proportional interest in the trust assets. in
March 2002, ¥60 billion in securities were issued. Both issues were rated AAA by Standard
& Poor’s, Aaa by Moody's and AAA by Fitch. The innovative structure employed to overcome
the historical difficulties in securitizing bank loans in Japan earned multiple industry awards
(see page 13).

In loan trading, we expanded our deal base to include performing assets, assets acquired
through the corporate revitalization business and securitized loans. Shinsei is continuously
exploring new avenues to participate in this market, especially in conjunction with the
corporate revitalization business.

We are enhancing our capabilities for servicing loans through BM Asset Management Co.,
Ltd., a licensed servicer affiliate for non-recourse commercial loans, non-performing loans
and residential mortgages.

Corporate Advisory
In the area of mergers and acquisitions (M&A), Shinsei realized early that success in advisory
work is based on the continual enhancement of industrial knowledge. We have therefore
increasingly focused our advisory work on industries that are undergoing rapid realignment.
These include leasing and non-bank financial institutions, hotel and leisure facilities,
the distribution and food sectors and the energy sector. Within the Japanese financial
community, we were among the first supporters of companies’ restructuring efforts, and have
witnessed a large number of successful cases among our clients. To meet customers’ needs
beyond industrial and regional boundaries, the Shinsei M&A team has created a broad
network of lawyers, accountants and regional banks with whom it works closely.

In addition, our private equity team, established in early 2002, was able to lay the ground-
work within the first few months of operation for a private equity fund alliance with ITOCHU
Corporation.

e
g .

O Corporate Revrtallzat:on

- Shinsei establlshed a Corporate Rewtalrzatron Team to help customers clean up their
balance sheets and rebuild their busmesses This high-value- added ‘high-margin -
busrness is growing in Japan, and Shinsei is among the first Japanese banks to enter the
field. In lts work thh these companies, Shinsei takes eduity positions when appropriate,
adwses on restructurmg and provides fundmg to accommodate working capital needs,

These situations provude Shinsel with very. favorable opportumtnes to earn advisory

- fees and. interest income in the early stages of a corporate workout while ultrmate!y
provndmg a source ot addltronal profrts and a ﬂemb!e exrt strategy through a sale or
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Capital Markets Trading

We continued to exband and strengthen the range of our capital markets products and
services. In addition to playing a key role in Shinsei's own funding activities, the Markets
Division significantly increased its sales staff to bring tailor-made customer solutions to a
wider range of corporations and financial institutions.



We are actively responding to customer requests for such new products as dual currency
deposits and powered reverse dual currency deposits, in addition to the foreign exchange
and derivative products and structured deposits we already offer. Our position as an active
commercial paper (CP) dealer in Tokyo was enhanced after we were appointed as an eligible
dealer for the Bank of Japan’s open market CP operations.

In trade finance services, we formed an alliance with ABN AMRO Bank N.V, to provide
value-added product delivery capability to our customers and to outsource our trade
processing, In July 2002, we launched Shinsei TradeNavigator, a web-based trade finance
platform, which will initially provide our customers with easy-to-access letter of credit
financing. )

Asset Management Services
Shinsei’s asset management activities provide more sophisticated financial products and
services for individual and institutional investars.

Our investment, along with the Barclays Bank group, in London-based fixed income asset
manager BlueBay Asset Management Limited further enhances our asset management
offerings. BlueBay launched its first fund in March 2002, and Shinsei became the exclusive
distributor in Japan.

Shinsei's asset management activities also represent a unigue link between the Bank’s
institutional and retail activities. In 2002, we established the Wealth Management Division to
provide customized products, services and advice to our large base of high-net-worth
individual customers throughout Japan. The Wealth Management Division is supported by
a specialized product development team in the Assat Management Services Division, whose
first high-net-worth product, a 100% principal-guaranteed fund-of-funds, was successfutly
launched via private placement in January 2002.

Shinsei Secutities -

Formed in May 2001, Shinsel Securities focuses on the sale of securitized products and
structured notes to institutional investors and has already achieved some impressive
milestones. For fiscal 2001, Shinsei Securities was involved in a number of major
transactions; it was the sole manager for Shinsei Bank's Dreams Funding RMBS and joint lead
manager in Japan of the Bank's CLO master trust program. As a result, Shinsei Securities
was ranked first in RMBS in the Bloomberg ABS ieague tables for 2001, and second in the
same category by Thomson DealWatch. It also placed sixth in the Japanese securitization
market in both surveys.

Shinsei Securities will continue to introduce products to meet the needs of its customers
and build its sales force based on the successful result of its first fiscal year and the expected
growth of the market. In addition to loans, other asset-based securitized products, new fund
types and bonds will be added to its product line.

Bringing It Together: The Challenge for Fiscal 2002 and Beyond

Shinsei's progress in institutional banking activities has been impressive to date. In a short
time, we have repositioned ourself as a stable and viable partner for corporate enterprises,
expanded our product range and unified our internal activities to better compete.

The challenge now is to extend our innovative approaches and leverage our achievements
by bringing all our products, services and skills to the attention of a growing customer base.
The Japanese financial world is evolving—Shinsei locks forward to continuing to support its
customers as they grow and change with it.
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Building a Better Bank for Our Retail Customers
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Building a Better Bank for Our Retail Customers

- “Shinsei is committed to building a bank that retail customers want to do business with. We offer |
a better choice of products, easier access and a level of convenience that no other bank in Japan

can match.”

|

Lo

Lo

{ B
K. Sajeeve Thomas .

Retail Banking Group E

Shinsei Bank:

Delivering Innovative Retail Banking Solutions

Since its retail launch on June 5, 2001, Shinsei's retail efforts have been aimed at building a
world-class retail bank that is able to deliver services and products unlike any others offered
in Japan today. At the core of the retail banking services offered is the PowerFlex account,
which allows retail customers to utilize a full range of Shinsei services and products through
a single unified approach. This is unique to Shinsei, and is based on an innovative technol-
ogy platform that has been tried and tested successfully in many international markets. This
gives Shinsei the ability to deliver a growing number of proven solutions to retail customers
at significantly lower marginal costs.

PowerFlex Answers Customers' Needs ,
The PowerFlex account allows customers the maximum benefit of Shinsei’s array of services
and products through a single source. The traditional passbook has been replaced by a more
comprehensive monthly statement. With PowerFlex, customers can perform business
transactions as they wish—either in person, by phone {Shinsei PowerCalf) or via the Internet
(Shinsei PowerDirect). Access is available 24 hours a day, seven days a week, which is an
important feature for customers who want round-the-clock transaction capabilities, including
real-time foreign exchange rates.

improving Convenience through Nationwide ATM Coverage

Shinsei is also at the farefront in terms of ATM coverage. While ubiquitous in other markets,
ATMs in Japan are usually only at bank branches or business locations. With Shinse,
however, ATM access has become the easiest in Japan. Today, through a network of over
59,000 ATMs, including at 7-Eleven stores, the post office and partner financial institutions,
customers can now withdraw cash and perform simple transactions whenever and wherever
they wish. Also, on March 29, 2002, Shinsei launched the ATM service Keikyu Station Bank
in Keihin Kyuko train stations, which has expanded our service to even more popular
locations. Additionally, based on our linkage with the PLUS network, our customers who
travel overseas can access local currencies in other countries via about 750,000 ATMs.

PowerSmart Housing Loans:

A Better Approach to House Buying

Buying a residence is usually the biggest personal investment most consumers make.
Recognizing this, Shinsei launched the unique PowerSmart housing loans in February
2002—which offer borrowers the option of a shorter repayment period and lower interest
payments on their housing loans.



Launch of the Weaith Management Division Fulfills Customers’ Consulting Needs
in March 2002, Shinsei established the Wealth Management Division with the aim of
providing financial consulting and portfolio advice, together with enhanced transactional
capability for high-net-worth customers. This has enabled us to work mare fully and
effectively with our customers by offering specialized services such as private placements,
risk advice, inheritance planning and asset management expertise.

Shinsei Financial Centers:

Banking Made Easy

While other banks have consolidated or closed down branches in Japan, Shinsei opened two
new Shinsei Financial Centers (SFCs) during fiscal 2001—in Roppongi and Meguro, two of
Tokyo's busiest business districts. In addition, more Shinsei branches in major commercial
areas have been upgraded into SFCs, bringing the total to 27—including Hiroo SFC, opened
~in July 2002—in major cities throughout Japan.

The SFCs are aesthetically designed to meet the needs of today's Japanese retail banking
customers. Streamlined, modern and comfortable the SFCs are a showcase for better
banking. Customers can transact business quickly and efficiently with the security of
knowing that staff are available for assistance if necessary. While most other banks’ branches
close at 3 p.m. on weekdays, SFCs are open until 7 p.m. In addition, at several SFCs,
customers may be seen sipping. cappuccino at Starbucks, which, in cooperation with
Shinsei, has positioned a number of coffee shops next door to these high-traffic centers.
Shinsei, as a result of a tie-up with Yahoo! (one of Japan’s leading internet providers), has
established a broadband Internet service at the SFC in the Head Office building.

Strong Customer Response
Customer response to Shinsei's approach to retail banking has been extremely positive. In
approximately 12 months, 150,000 PowerFlex accounts were opened, representing more
than ¥680 billion in assets. In March 2002, the number of phone calls to PowerCall banking
was eight times as many compared with June 2001 when the service commenced. Internet-
based PowerDirect access was 17 times higher than when the service began.

The secret to Shinsei’s success is doing things better, and doing them first, Customers in
Japan are no longer willing to settfe for a banking approach that merely maintains the current
value of their investment. Shinsei offers added value—and customers love it.

Where to Next:
Increased Scale with Lower Costs
Our initial success with building a credible retail banking presence has not slowed our
determination to go further. Shinsei is way ahead of its competition in service, products and
convenience—and as the demands of Japanese consumers increase, Shinsei will become
the bank of choice. With investments in sound and proven technologies, together with its
focus on operations and efficiency, Shinsei will continue to expand its retail base, while -
lowering the acquisition, transaction and service costs per customer,

We look forward to this ongoing challenge.

“Why Shinsei? I'm busy so | want to

be able to bank with convenience

and speed. They seem to really want
my business and they keep coming

up with ideas that | like.”

Shinsei Financial Center in Tokyo
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Building an Open, Sound Bank

In addition to providing a steady stream of new products and services, Shinsei Bank has also implemented a wide ranging set of
internal measures designed to improve performance, profitability and soundness. These measures include establishing transpat-
ent management systems and robust risk controls, improving information systems to support effective business operations and
creating innovative human resources systems to increase the capabilities of the Bank's employees. Through these far-reaching
initiatives, Shinsei aims to build up its management systems in a disciplined way to match global industry standards. During the
past year, we have made significant progress toward our ambitious goals.

Corporate Governance

Establishment of and adherence to corporate governance guidelines that clearly divide the
business management function from the monitoring function is imperative to maintain
transparency and further strengthen management credibility. Since its establishment, Shinsei
Bank has adopted a management structure that successfully separates these two functions,
as shown in the diagram below.

Business Management Function Momtorlng Functlon

Corporate Executive Officers “Board of Dlrectors

.Functron

74 Appoints members of management team to lead daily business operations

2 Evaluates and monitors the management tearn and makes high-level decisions
regarding long-term business and management strategy '

- Members;

& Comprises three executrve dlrectors and 11 mdependent non -executive directors

& Under the leadership of Shinsei's
president and CEQ, corporate executive
officers manage the Bank's daily
business operations.

Q Corporate executive officers are subject
to the skill-based nomination and
performance-based compensation :
system and periodic examination by -~ - - -
the Nomination and Compensation : ‘ Nomination and Compensation Committee
Committee.

»—Mwwv—'«qﬂ-—\w%‘

Functron

.} 15 Makes decisions regardrng executive offrcer nominations,
performance evaluat:ons and compensatron

Members

Management Committee

Building an Open, Sound Bank
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 Function: e
> Discusses critical business and operational : . D Non-executive directors constitute the majority of the Committee J
- issues as the decision-making body for p
Mtehre:]gzssraent ' : e : Audit Committee'.
) Comprises three axecutive directors Functlon ‘ SRR
and corporate executive officers : 9 Strives to strengthen the Bank’s mternal audlt functuon
\ ; s ‘Members; S
: \Ii Comprises all statutory audrtors and non- executave drrectors i’
N . ‘ L
E o . .- Board of Statutory Auditors i

Management Committees Support Organizational Flexibility

Management chellenges faced by the Bank often require a companywide response and
flexible solutions across divisions. While the Bank continuously strives to deepen the risk
management and problem solving capabilities of each division, it also maintains several
executive committees under the leadership of the president and the corporate executive
officers 1o reinforce communication and cooperation across divisions., The major committees
are outlined below.



ALM Committee: Establishes, adapts and enforces policies relating to medium-to-long-term asset-liability management,
(ALM) and use and source of funds. )

FTTTN

f

- : » ~
L-( Market Risk Management Committee:. Reports ta managementon the Bank's-averall market risk :
: posmon arising from tradmg achvmes and ALM operatlons ]

o

Risk/Investment Committee: Approves investments and reviews and determines the portfolio structure
and risk/capital allocation of the Bank.

Credit Committee: Discusses, coordinates and approves credits.

Compliance Committee: Coordinates and resolves compliance issues relating to such areas as the Antitrust Act,
infarmation management and prevention of money laundering,

New Business/Product Committee; Discusses and reviews new and non-standard businesses and products.

SME Loan Committee: Plans, executes and controls measures to achieve the Plan for Restoring Sound Management
with regard to loans to SMEs.

integrated Risk Management
As financial institutions confront various kinds of risk, there must be an integrated approach
to risk management. Integrated risk management involves not only precisely monitoring risks
inherent in various businesses, but also comprehending and quantifying risk across an
institution’s operations to the greatest extent possible. Shinsei's Risk Management Policy,
issued in November 2000, sets out comprehensive palicies for management of the many
risks the Bank faces. (See page 35 for details.)

The following paragraphs provide an overview of the main riék components Shinsei seeks
to manage in an integrated fashion.

Credit Risk Management
Credit risk—the risk that a banking counterparty will become unable to meet its contractual
obligations due to deterioration in its credit situation—represents the largest potential impact
to Shinsei's performance. The Bank manages this risk by attempting to secure sufficient
return on risk taken through objective risk assessment and appropriate pricing. In February
2001, the Bank implemented a new internal obligor rating system after thorough review in
relation to consistency with external ratings.

The Bank also rates each credit facility considering individua! collateral to price a loan and
to analyze portfolio for better credit risk management. (See page 35 for details.)

Asset-Liability Management (ALM) and Compliance Measures

To maximize its medium-to-long-term profitability, Shinsei Bank has established an ALM
Committee to set ALM policies and strive for comprehensive strategic management of the
assets and liabilities on its balance sheet.

Shinsei has also established the Legal and Compliance Division as a specialized unit
charged with managing legal and compliance issues in a unified fashion. This division both
enforces the Bank’s compliance requirements and deals with potential and existing lawsuits.
(See page 33 for details.)
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Building an Open, Sound Bank
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Information System Sophistication
By introducing no-fee ATM services, available 24 hours a day, 365 days a year, and bank
account services available to customers at any time via the Internet and call centers, Shinsei
Bank has redefined the nature of retail banking services in Japan. Shinsei's sophisticated
information systems underscore its commitment to bringing a new “no-constraints” spirit to
the industry, and the Bank is continually improving the quality and security of its information
systems at the lowest possible cost.
Shinsei Bank's comprehensive bank account, PowerFlex, which was launched in
June 2001, is an example of our information system-based innovation. The state-of-the-art
open system established to support PowerFlex incorporates fully packaged software, without
a need for mainframe hardware, allowing the Bank to significantly reduce development costs,
complexity and time. .
Based on a philosophy of creating complete software systems out of multiple components
as “"building blocks” under open architecture, Shinsei is efficiently developing the information
technology (IT) infrastructure it needs to support new financial products. The Bank's infar-
mation systems can be upgraded to incorporate the latest technologies by changing
individual components, increasing flexibility and generating substantial cost efficiencies.

Human Resources System to Foster and Encourage Professionals
Since the Bank’s establishment, a world-class human resources system has been the
cornerstone of Shinsei’s effort to implement its new business mode! and support its aggres-
sive internal initiatives. Shinsei’s goal of becoming the leading Japanese financial services
institution is supported by the three tenets of its human resources policy:
Iy Performance-based compensation
& Decentralized authority ‘
(& Active recruitment of external human resources

Furthermore, to increase individual accountability within its operations, the Bank has
designated to each member of its staff a specific sphere of business, or “franchise,” by
phasing out the traditional practice of rotational assignment. These human resources
initiatives—considered revolutionary within the Japanese banking market—will help Shinsei
develop a strong, professional staff capable of responding to its many operational challenges
and achieving the goal of building better banking in Japan.
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Consclidated Six-Year Summary

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Subsidiaries

Statements of Operations Data
Millions of Yen (Except Per Share Data and Number of Shares Issued)

Years Ended March 31 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Net Interest Income:
Interest tncome ¥155,481 ¥211,468 ¥ 254,002 ¥ 704,186 ¥ 966,312 ¥1,780,373
Interest Expenses 67,072 125,624 233,272 545,614 765,865 1,567,427

¥ 88,409 ¥ 85843 ¥ 20,729 ¥ 158,572 ¥ 200,447 ¥ 212,945

Fees and Commissions, Net:
Fees and Commissions (Income) ¥ 11,277 ¥ 12,819 ¥ 9,280 ¥ 40,641 ¥ 64141 ¥ 35326
Fees and Commissions (Expenses) 3,474 2,278 4,398 9,918 43,299 12,206
¥ 7,803 ¥ 10,541 ¥ 4,891 ¥ 30,722 ¥ 20,842 ¥ 23120

Trading Revenue (Loss), Net:
Trading Revenue ¥ 1912 ¥ 4672 ¥ 2,728 ¥ 3,252 ¥ 5,422 ¥ —
Trading Expenses 126 — 79 27,637 6,204 —
¥ 1,785 ¥ 4,672 ¥ 2,649 ¥ (24,385) ¥ (781) ¥ —

Other Operating Income (Loss), Net:
Other Operating Income ¥ 35,648 ¥ 3830 ¥ 7,841 ¥ 48877 ¥ 140952 ¥ 187210
Other Operating Expenses 21,452 4,697 17,156 50,953 134,380 141,770
¥ 14,195 ¥ (807) ¥ (9315) ¥ (2075 ¥ 6572 ¥ 45439

Net {Loss) Gain on Sales, Redemption

and Devaluation of Bonds ¥ (3,118) ¥ (1,920) ¥ (1,271} ¥ (12,390) ¥ (9,661) ¥ 40,892
General and Administrative Expenses 69,514 63,899 62,735 85,462 107,965 133,320
- Other Income 42,241 75,167 1,613,896 2,864,273 270,112 363,756
g income from Special Monetary Support — - 821,671 — — —
- Transfer to Temporary Nationalization
Account — — — 2,786,889 — —
Gain on Sales of Stocks and Other
Equity-Related Securities 5,571 58,258 486,234 17,685 219,451 330,815
Other Expenses 44,581 20,560 1,459,017 3,710,444 644,648 484,882
Loss on Sales of Stocks and Other Securities 845 304 145,531 72,286 33,540 22,003
Loss on Devaluation of Stocks and
Other Securities 10,033 1,394 2,215 285,679 14,522 247,787
Provision for Loan Losses 728 — 365,473 1,191,480 305,348 47,023
Written-Off Claims 160 29 948 3,963 51,507 19,679
Provision for Retirement Allowances — — — — 7,815 —
Reversal of Special Statutory Reserves - — 6 7 13,752 2,521
Provision for Special Statutory Reserves - — — — 0 861
Total Income 246,561 308,018 1,887,758 3,661,239 1,460,694 2,369,188
Total Expenses 206,221 217,060 1,776,659 4,430,031 1,702,362 2,340,568
Income (Loss) before [ncome Taxes and .

Minority Interests ¥ 40,339 ¥ 90,958 ¥ 111,098 ¥ (768,792) ¥ (241,667) ¥ 28,619
Net Income (Loss) ¥ 61,219 ¥ 90,464 ¥ 111,346 ¥(1,010,172) ¥ (148,651) ¥ 19,473
Per Share (Yen)

Net Income (Loss) ' ¥21.11 ¥31.87 ¥45.60 ¥(418.03) ¥(62.12) ¥ 813
Diluted Net income 15.10 21.35 37.09 — — —
Cash Dividends:
Common Stock 1.11 1.11 — — 6.00 6.00
Preferred Stock:
Series 2 13.00 13.00 — — — —
Series 3 4.84 4.84 — — — —
Total Stockholders’ Equity 105.50 90.52 50.31 n.m. 373.96 44232
Number of Shares Issued (Thousands)
Common Stock 2,717,075 2,717,075 2,717,075 2,417,075 2,392,904 2,392,904
Preferred Stock 674,528 674,528 74,528 100,000 100,000 —

Notes: 1. n.m.: not meaningful
2. The Bank had been under temporary nationalization from October 23, 1998, to March 1, 2000, under the Financial Revitalization Law.
3. Diluted net income per share for the years ended March 31, 1899 and 1938, are not disclosed because of the Bank's net loss position. Diluted net
incame per share for the year ended March 31, 1997, is not disclosed because of no diluted effect.
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Balance Sheet Data
Millions of Yen (Except Key Ratios)

March 31 - 2002 2001 2000 1899 1988 15897
Assets _
Cash and Due from Banks ¥ 342,055 ¥ 477,482 ¥ 1,930,219 ¥ 817,247 ¥ 1,281,887 ¥ 1,342,134
Call Loans 296,559 276,000 363,492 586,007 558,877 239,757
Commercial Paper and -
QOther Debt Purchased 68,980 18,555 1,189 5,266 126,428 10,873
Trading Account Securities — — N — ) — 390,203
Trading Assets ‘ 443,972 382,222 545,120 865,931 1,243,291 —
Money Held in Trust 172,835 96,477 — 59,213 560,159 679,131
Securities 1,462,281 1,988,518 2,804,703 2,074,839 4,073,479 5,084,716
Loans and Bills Discounted 4,801,904 6,187,320 7,711,024 13,690,599 15,990,706 19,174,126
Foreign Exchanges 149,251 10,771 14,294 21,057 47,280 70,957
Temporary Nationalization Account — — . — 2,786,889 — -
Other Assets 486,605 409,708 366,778 1,116,029 1,622,992 1,475,396
Premises and Equipment ‘ 82,565 28,852 35,865 82,425 127,438 140,851
Deferred Discounts on and
Issuance Expenses for Debentures 469 1,425 1,981 3,906 9,465 18,162
Deferred Tax Assets ’ 17,695 : 30 — — 230,652 106,723
Customers' Liabilities for . .
Acceptances and Guarantees 114,411 172,238 298,624 499,695 693,032 773,742 -
Reserve for Loan Losses (370,033) (563,891} (866,518) — — —
Total Assets ) ¥8,069,554 ¥9,485,711 ¥13,206,776 ¥22,609,110 ¥26,565,691 ¥29506,775
Liabilities, Minority Interests in o
Subsidiaries and Stockholders' Equity
Debentures : ¥2,786,355 ¥3,670,417 ¥ 6,730,795 ¥ 7,965,770 ¥12,268,677 ¥15511,565 [ g |
Deposits, Including NCDs 2,260,755 3,218,835 2,777,516 3,371,968 5,855,224 8,294,252 | &
Call Money 329,900 255,200 245,206 1,663,974 864,267 561,824
Commercial Paper 1,000 62,000 500 1,500° : = -
Trading Liabilities 173,580 253,684 277,876 553,342 799,198 —
Borrowed Money 459,272 550,835 902,995 3,633,587 1,477,071 1,135,558
Foreign Exchanges 65 107 270 1,001 1,393 4,199 g
Collateral Related to Securities
Lending Transactions 582,198 139,341 847,033 200,820 833,338 284,586
Other Liabilities 707,042 539,505 633,109 842,769 1,860,961 1,385,391
Reserve for Bonuses Payable 8,584 7,081 2,317 —_ — —
Reserve for Loan Losses — — — 3,664,716 741,932 447,540
Reserve for Derivative-Related Credit Risk — — 1,295 — — -
Reserve for Retirement Benefits 22,766 19,612 15,512 20,184 27,544 19,755
Reserve for Contingencies on Loans Sold —_ : — — 97,621 17,526 14,340
Reserve for Disposition of Specific Assets - - — 79,714 — —
Reserve for Loss on Disposition
of Premises and Equipment 53 3,921 80 — — —
Other Reserve - — 0 6 14 13,766
Deferred Tax Liabilities : 0 10,084 — 2,586 — —
Minority Interests in Subsidiaries - — - — 663 1,798
Acceptances and Guarantees 114,411 172,238 T 298,624 - 499,695 693,032 - 773,742
Total Liabilities 7,445,987 8,902,865 12,733,132 22,599,159 25,540,845 28,448,322
Minority Interests in Subsidiaries 33 - 59 167 — —
Total Stockholders’ Equity 623,534 582,846 473,584 9,782 1,024,845 1,058,453
Total Liabilities, Minority Interests
in Subsidiaries and
Stockholders' Equity ¥8,069,654 ¥9,485,711 ¥13,206,776 ¥22,609,110 ¥26,565,691 ¥29,506,775
Key Ratios (%)
Return on Total Income 2483% 29.37% 5.90% n.m. n.m. 0.82%
Return on Total Assets 0.74 0.83 . 072 n.m. n.m. 0.06
Return on Total Stockholders’ Equity 10.90 19.06 n.m. n.m. n.m. 1.86
Capital Adequacy Ratio {BIS Criteria) - - ~ 0.12% 10.32% 9.22
Capital Adequacy Ratio (Domestic Criteria) 17.04 16.99 12.21 — — —

Notes: 1. n.m.: not meaningfu!
2. The Bank had been under temporary nationalization from October 23, 1998, to March 1, 2001, under the Financial Revitalization Law.

3. Reserve for bonuses payable for the years ended March 31, 1899, 1998 and 1997, is included in other liabilities. 23
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Financial and Economic Environment On the other hand, the September 11 terrorist attacks
The financial and economic environment of fiscal 2001, in the United States came as a further blow o the world
ended March 31, 2002, continued to be severe. The economy after the bursting of the IT bubble, which tem-
Japanese economy further contracted due to its deflation- porarily created fears of a global econamic slowdawn.

ary trend, despite action by the Bank of Japan to increase However, due to the quick response of U.S. financial
money supply. The hollowing of domestic industry contin- authorities, the U.S. economy has shown signs of recov-
ued, accompanied by record unemployment, while expec- ery, thereby reassuring the world economy. The Japanese
tations for structural economic reforms initiated by Prime economy has almost bottomed out due to progress in the
Minister Junichiro Koizumi failed to materialize. Moreover, adjustment of inventories and a recovery in exports, but
the occurrence of a series of bankruptcies of large corpo- structural problems are far from being solved,

rations renewed people's concern about the seriousness of Under the economic circumstances described above,
the bad debt problem. This pushed the Nikkei 225 tem- the short-term interest rate declined to almost zero, sup-
porarily below ¥10,000, a new low since the bursting of ported by the policy adopted by the Bank of Japan to relax
Japan's bubble economy, and created a resurgence of the volume of money supply. The rate remained relatively
instability in the financial system. In response, the gov- stable at that level, although it fluctuated slightly toward
ernment implemented measures regulating the short sell- the end of the fiscal year with the approach of the removal
ing of shares and conducted a special inspection to of blanket deposit insurance, to be implemented in April
promote the disposition of bad debts. These measures 2002. Despite a series of downgrades of Japanese govern-
provided a breathing spell for financial and economic con- ment bonds (JGBs) by overseas credit rating agencies, the
ditions in Japan toward the end of fiscal 2001, just before long-term interest rate remained stable between 1.00%

the removal of blanket insurance on bank deposits. - and 1.50%, supported by policies taken by the Koizumi

Principal Economic Indicators
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administration to implement the structural economic uncertain following the terrorist attacks, but returned to

reforms and to limit the amount of JGBs issued to ¥30 ¥130-135 to the U.S. doflar toward the end of the fiscal
frillion a year. The yen strengthened to ¥120 to the U.S. year as market participants became concerned over the

dolflar when the prospects for the U.S. economy became seriousness of problems with the Japanese economy.

| Supmneny o % PR TGS | ]

Main Indicamrs of Performance (Consolidated)

. Millions of Yen (Except per Share Figures and Ratios)
Years Ended March 31 2002 2001 2000 1999 . 1998 1997

Operating Income . o . ¥ 235967 ¥ 299,281 ¥ 866,159 ¥ 821,495 ¥ 1,410,055 ¥ 2,363,908
Net Operating Income (Loss) 39,455 95,546  (112,499) (1,591,645)  (282,669) 26,497
Net Income (Loss) ' 61,219 90,464 111,346 (1,010,172) (148,651) 19,473
Capital Stock ~ 451,296 451296 229,296 390,710 387,229 322,229
Total Stockhalders' Equity . . .. .623,534. 582,846 473,584 9,782 1,024,845 1,058,453
Total Assets ‘ 8,069,554 9,485,711 13,206,776 22,609,110 26,565,681 28,506,775
Debentures 2,786,355 3,670,417 6,730,795 7,965,770 12,268,677 15,511,565
Deposits, Including NCDs 2,260,755 3,218,835 2,777,516 3,371,968 5,955,224 8,294,252
Loans and Bills Discounted . 4,801,904 6,187,320 7,711,024 13,680,599 15,990,706 19,174,126
Securities 1,462,281 1,988,518 2,804,703 2,074,839 4,073,479 5,084,716
Total Stockholders’ Equity per Share (Yen) . 105.50 80.52 50.31 n,m. 373.96 442,32
Net Income (Loss) per Share (Yen) - A 21.11 31.87 45,60 (418.03) {(62.12) 8.13
Capital Adequacy Ratio (BIS Criteria) (%) —_ - — 0.12% 10.32% 9.22%
Cap'i‘tféf Adequacy Ratio (Domestic Criteria) (%) 17.04% 16.99% 12.21% — — —

Notes: 1. Stockholders' equity per share is determined by multiplying the number of preferred shares outstanding at the end of the fiscal year by the issue
-— - price of such shares, subtracting the result from net assets and dividing by the number of shares (excluding treasury stock) outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year,
. .2, Net income (loss) per share is determined by subtracting total dividends on preferred shares from net income (loss) and dividing by the average
- number of shares (excluding treasury stock) outstanding during the fiscal year.

3. The capital adequacy ratic is determined according to the formula set forth in Ministry of Finance notification, based on the preamble to Article 17
of the Long-Term Credit Bank Law, which follows the provisions of Articie 14-2 of the Banking Law. Note that the Bank applied BIS capital
gdeoquacy criteria in years through flscal 1998, ended March 31, 1999, but has applied domestic criteria from fiscal 1999, ended March 31,

000

‘ 4 n.m.: not meamngful

Description of Consolidated Business " (As of March 31, 2002)

The Shinsei Bank Group (Shinsei Bank, Limited, its subsidiaries and affiliated companies) comprises 23 subsidiaries,
including Shinsei Trust & Banking Co.; Ltd., and an affiliated company, BlueBay Asset Management Limited,
accounted for by the equity method. The Group is engaged in financial services, principally banking services, as well as
other services, including securities business and trust business.:The Group's main services are as follows:
Banking: At its headquarters and domestic branches, the Bank handles a variety of financial products, \ncludmg
debentures, deposits, loans and guarantees, and such services as domestic remsttance services, foreign exchange
transactions, investment and trading of securities and foan tradmg In addition, an overseas subsidiary, Shinsei
Bank Finance N.V,, issues medium-to-long-term bonds and books derivative transactions.
Securities Business: A domestic subsidiary, Shinsei Securities Co., Ltd., offers such services as securitization and
the underwriting and sale of bonds. (Operations commenced May 2001.)
Trust Business: A domestic subsidiary, Shinsei Trust & Banking Co., Ltd., covers services for such products as
maonetary claims trusts, securities trusts and specified money trusts.
Other Activities: BlueBay Asset Management provides asset management services.
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Highlights of Statements of Operations Data (Consolidated)

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S, Daollars
Years Ended March 31 2002 2001 2002
Gross Business Profit, including Gain from Money Held in Trust ¥127,328 ¥100,591 $ 955,917
Net Business Profit, including Gain from Money Held in Trust 58,813 38,363 441,544
Net Operating Income 39,455 95,546 296,215
Net Interest Income 88,409 85,843 663,734
Fees and Commissions, Net 7,803 10,541 58,584
Trading, Net 1,785 4,672 13,405
Other QOperating Income (Loss), Net 14,195 (807) 106,576
General and Administrative Expenses (69,514) (63,899) (521,879)
Other (Expenses) Income, Net (3,223) 59,196 (24,204)
Net Extraordinary Income (Expenses) 883 (4,588) - 6,635
Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests 40,339 90,958 302,850
Current Income Taxes 314 442 2,360
Defetred Income Taxes (21,227) 56 (159,365)
Minority Interests in Net [ncome (Loss) of Subsidiaries 32 (6) 247
Net Income ¥ 61,219 ¥ 90,464 $ 459,608
Note: Net extraordinary income (expenses) comprises income (expense) on sale of properties, bad debt recovered and other extraordinary items.
Highlights of Balance Sheet Data (Consolidated)
Billians of Yen UMélflgngaorfs
March 31 2002 2001 2002
Assets
Loans and Bills Discounted ¥4,801.9 ¥6,187.3 $36,050.3
Securities 1,462.2 1,988.5 10,978.0
Trading Assets 443.9 382.2 3,333.1
Other Assets 486.6 409.7 3,653.1
Reserve for Loan Losses (370.0)° (563.8) T (2,778.0)
Total Assets ¥8,069.5 ¥9 485.7 $60,582.2
Liabilities
Debentures ¥2,786.3 ¥3,670.4 $20,918.5
Deposits 1,864.8 2,165.3 14,000.4
NCDs 395.8 1,053.4 2,972.1
Trading Liabilities 173.5 253.6 1,303.1
Other Liabilities 707.0 539.5 5,308.1
Total Liabilities ¥7,445.9 ¥8,902.8 $55,900.8
Minaority Interests in Subsidiaries 0.0 C— 0.0
Total Stockholders’ Equity 623.5 582.8 4,681.1
Total Liabilities, Minority Interests in SubSIdlarles
and Stockholders’ Equity ¥8,069.5 ¥9 485.7 $60,582.2

Number of Consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates Accounted for hy the Equity Method

Number of Comparnies

March 31 2002 . 2001
Consolidated Subsidiaries 23 13
Affiliates Accounted for by the Equnty Method 1 . 3

Review of Consolidated Performance

Shinsei Bank started its operations anew in March 2000
under new shareholders and management, and changed
its name from The Long-Term Credit Bank to Shinsei Bank
in June 2000. Fiscal 2001, ended March 31, 2002, was
the second year for the new bank.

At the end of fiscal 2001, the Bank had 23 consoli-
dated subsidiaries. The number increased by 10 from the
end of the previous ferm as the Bank expanded busi-
nesses into such areas as asset management and commer-
cial mortgage lending. The Bank had one affiliated



cbmpany under the equity method, down from three in the
previous term, owing to the disposition of ownership of
one company and the reorganization of another into a
subsidiary.

The Bank posted net income of ¥61.2 billion in fiscal
2001, after tax adjustments, including deferred income
taxes amounting to ¥21.2 billion. Net income for the pre-
vious year, which amounted to ¥20.4 billion, included a
¥55.0 billion gain from the sale of an equity portfolio to
the Deposit Insurance Corporation of Japan (DIC). If this
non-recurring gain were excluded from the fiscal 2000
result, net income for fiscal 2001 would have substan-
tially exceeded net income for the previous year.

Net business profit before general reserve for loan
losses, including gain from money held in trust (“core
profit”), increased 53.3%, to ¥58.8 billion, as an
increase in gross business profit, including gain from
money held in trust, exceeded an increase in general and
administrative expenses. ]

The Bank posted gross business profit, 'including gain

biltion in fiscal 2001, a ¥26.7 billion increase from the
previous year, reflecting improved net interest income of
¥88.4 billion, owing to a wider lending spread and a
better funding structure. Non-interest income increased
¥24.1 billion, to ¥38.9 billion, mainly owing to the suc-
cess of new investment banking businesses. Non-interest
income represented 30.6% of gross business profit,
including gain from money held in trust.

General and administrative expenses were ¥69.5 bil-
lion, as a result of active development of retail and other
new business areas. .

in assets, loans and bills discounted decreased
¥1,385.4 bilfion, to ¥4,801.9 billion at the end of fiscal
2001, mainly because of a reduction in non-performing
loans through sale, direct write-off and weak market
demand for new loans. In liabilities, in line with the
reduced assets, debentures decreased ¥884.0 billion, to
¥2,786.3 billion; and deposits, including NCDs,
decreased ¥958.0 billion, to ¥2,260.7 billion.

Total stockholders’ equity increased ¥40.6 billion, to

from money held in trust {“net revenue”), of ¥127.3 ¥623.5 billion.
Highlights of Statements of Operations Data (Non-Consolidated)
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Years Ended March 31 . 2002 2001 2002
Gross Business Profit (gyomu-sorieki) a ¥103,794  ¥100,256 $779,240

Net Interest Income 93,828 88,283 704,416

Fees and Commissions, Net 7,487 10,015 56,215

Trading, Net 261 2,340 1,961

Other Business Income (Loss), Net 2,217 (382) 16,648
General Reserve for Loan Losses b (26,156) — {196,368)
Expenses 65,868 61,492 494,505
Net Business Profit before General Reserve

for Loan Losses (fisshitsu gyomu jun-eki) d=a-c¢ 37,926 38,764 284,734
Net Business Profit (gyomu jun-eki) e=d-b 64,082 38,764 481,103
Net Business Profit before General Reserve for {oan Losses,

including Gain from Money Held in Trust 57,920 38,861 434,840
Other Operating Income, Net (rinji son-eki) f (25,598) 57,263 (192,180)
Net Operating Income (keijo rieki) g=e+f 38,484 96,027 288,922
Extraordinary Income (Expenses) h 1,188 (4,537) 8,921
Income before income Taxes i=g+h 39,672 91,490 297,843
Current Income Taxes j 137 222 1,034
Deferred Income Taxes 3 21,204 —_ 159,189
Net Income I=i-j+k 60,738 91,267 455,998

Notes: 1. Interest expenses related to money held in trust have been deducted from other operating income, net.
2. General reserve for loan losses for fiscal 2000 is included in extraordinary income (expenses), since reversal of the general reserve for loan losses

exceeded the provision to the specific reserve for loan losses.
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Indicators of Non-Consolidated Performance
Principal indicators of the Bank's performance include
gross business profit, net business profit before general
reserve for loan losses, net operating income and net
income.

Net business profit before general reserve for loan
losses, including gain from money held in trust, repre-

_sents the Bank's operating results substantially.

Gross business profit measures the profitability of a
bank's core businesses. Its four components are: net
interest income, which shows the margin between funds
sourced and funds used; fees and commissions, net,
which is derived through loan-related fees, investment
trust distribution and other fee-based activities; trading,
net, which represents income obtained from buying and
selling securities and derivatives; and other business
income, net, which comprises net gains or losses from
such activities as foreign exchange transactions and bond
trading in the investment account.

Net business profit is defined as gross business profit
minus the general reserve for loan losses and expenses.

Net operating income is obtained by adding net gains
from equity trading, subtracting the costs of disposal of
problem assets and adding certain other special net gains
to gross business profit. After taking into account other
extraordinary items, income taxes are subtracted to obtain
net income. ‘ :

Review of Non-Consolidated Performance

In fiscal 2001, the Bank posted net income of ¥60.7 bil-
lion, after net credit cost of ¥2.7 billion, and adjustment
for income taxes of ¥21.2 billion, following the posting of
deferred tax assets. If 2 ¥55.0 billion gain from the sale
of an equity portfolio to the DIC were excluded from net
income for fiscal 2000, which totaled ¥91.2 billion, net
income for fiscal 2001 would have been substantially
higher than that for the previous year.

Net business profit before general reserve for loan
losses, including gain from money held in trust (“core
profit”), increased 49.0%, to ¥57.9 billion.

Gross business profit (not including gain from money
held in trust) increased ¥3.5 billion, to ¥103.7 billion,
because net interest income increased as a resuit of a
better funding structure and an increased profit contribu-
tion from investment banking business.

Expenses increased ¥4.3 billion, to ¥65.8 billion,
owing to active development of new business areas.

In fiscal 2001, the Bank paid preferred dividends (one
half of set annual dividend) and common dividends
(¥0.56 per share).

Total assets decreased ¥1,684.6 billion, to ¥8,366.6
billion at the end of fiscal 2001. Loans and bills dis-
counted decreased ¥1,171.4 billion, to ¥5,012.1 billion,
owing to the reduction of non-performing loans by ¥541.6
billion through direct write-off, transfer to the DIC and
weak market demand for new loans.

In liabilities, debentures decreased ¥748.7 billion,
to ¥2,735.2 billion, and deposits, including NCDs,
decreased ¥918.7 billion, to ¥2,384.0 billion, in line
with asset reduction. In debenture issuance, higher
coupon five-year debentures matured, while one- and two-
year coupon debentures increased. In deposits, retail
deposits increased significantly. We are pleased with our
funding diversification. :

Total stockholders' equity increased ¥39.8 billion, to
¥617.3 billion, Beginning fiscal 2001, the Bank posted
deferred tax assets, which represented 2.9% of total
stockholders’ equity.
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Disciosure of Claims under the Fmancnal
Revitalization Law (Non-Consolidated)

The Bank’s exposure, according to the disclosure criteria
specified in the Financial Revitalization Law, as of March
31, 2002, was ¥1,113.6 billion, a reduction of ¥182.3
billion compared with March 31, 2001, Within this sum,
bankrupt and quasi-bankrulpt claims were down ¥166.3
billion, compared with the previous fiscal year-end, to
¥306.5 billion, substandard claims fell ¥85.9 bitlion, to

¥366.9 billion, and doubtful claims rose ¥69.9 billion, to
¥440.0 billion.-As a result, the ratio of non-performing
claims disclosed under the Financial Revitalization Law to
total credit stood at 20.01% at the end of fiscal 2001.
Loans to borrowers requiring caution, which includes

the substandard claims mentioned above, totaled ¥927.4
billion at the end of fiscal 2001, down ¥301.0 bilflion
compared with the previous fiscal year-end. Loans to

. borrowers requiring caution and below were down ¥397.5
billion, to ¥1,674.0 billion,

Disclosure of Claims under the Financial Revitalization Law (Non-Consolidated)

Millions of Yen

Years Ended March 31 . 2002 2001 Change -
For the Fiscal Terms Ended o
Bankrupt and Quasi-Bankrupt (A) ¥ 306,566 ¥ 472,945 ¥ (166,379)

Doubtful (B) 440,069 370,088 69,981
Substandard (C) 366,985 452,950 (85,965)
Total (D) [{A) + (B) + (C)) ¥1,113,621  ¥1,295,983 ¥ (182,362)
Total Credit Amount (E) 5,565,658 6,809,440 (1,243,782) ‘
Ratio (D) / (E) (%) 20.01% 19.03% 0.98

Coverage Ratios

Coverage ratios for claims classified under the Financial
Revitalization Law, which is the total of collateral pledged
ag_}ainst claims, guarahtees for claims and reserve for loan
losses versus total claims at the end of fiscal 2001, were
100% for bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt, 92.31% for
doubtful and 60.12% for substandard, For all claims

classified, the coverage ratio was 83.82%.

The Bank does not make direct write-offs of the .
portion of claims that are estimated to be uncollectible.
However, if such write-offs were made at an estimated
amount of ¥61.5 billion, the coverage ratjo for all
classified claims would have been 82.87%.

Coverage Ratios for Nhn-Performing Claims Disclosed under the Financial Revitalization Law

Millions of Yen
Amounts of Coverage
Collateral
Amount Reserves for and Coverage
of Claims Loan Losses Guarantees - Total Ratio
Fiscal 2000
Bankrupt and Quasi-Bankrupt ’ ¥ 472,945 ¥199,080 ¥273,865 ¥ 472,945 100.00%
Doubtful ' 370,088 143,552 173,231 316,784 85.60
Substandard 452,950 133,594 114,393 247,988 5475
Total ‘ ¥1,295,983 ¥476,226 ¥561,489 ¥1,037,717 80.07%
Fiscal 2001 , N o o
Bankrupt and Quasi-Bankrupt ¥ 306,566 ¥ 61,617 ¥244,948 ¥306,566 100.00%
Doubtful 440,069. 113,066 293,166 406,233 92.31
Substandard 366,985 - 119,896 100,728 © %220,624 60.12
¥638,843 ¥933,424 83.82%

¥294,580

Total : T ¥1,113,621
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Disposal of Problem Assets in Fiscal 2001
(Non-Consolidated)

In regard to credit costs incurred on the disposal of prob-
lem assets, the Bank posted a reversal of general reserve

Breakdown of Disposal of Problem Assets (Non-Consolidated)

for loan losses of ¥26.1 billion and a provisioning of spe-
cific reserve for loan losses of ¥28.7 billion. Total credit
costs amounted to ¥2.7 billion.

Millions of Yen

Years Ended March 31 2002 2001

Write-Offs ¥ 159 ¥ 29
Other Losses on Loan Sales 179 83
General Reserve for Loan Losses (26,156) (39,688)
Specific Reserve for Loan Losses 28,761 33,683
Provisions to Country Risk Reserve (155) (55)
Subtotal ¥ 2,450 ¥ (6,061)
Total Credit Costs ¥ 2,789 ¥ (5,947)

Reserve for Loan Losses (Non-Consolidated)

As of March 31, 2002, the Bank's reserve for loan losses
decreased ¥192.8 billion, to ¥371.4 billion, with a
general reserve of ¥192.3 billion, a specific reserve of
¥178.9 billion and a reserve for loans to restructuring

Reserve for Loan Losses (Non-Consolidated)

countries of ¥156 million. Total reserve stood at 6.67% of
the total credit amount. {n fiscal 2001, ¥195.4 billion of

reserve was used for losses on write-offs and sales of loan-
related assets.

Millions of Yen

March 31 2002 2001 Change

General Reserve ¥ 192,350 ¥ 220,455 ¥ (28,105)
Specific Reserve 178,954 343,537 (164,583)
Reserve for Loans to Restructuring Countries . 156 296 (140)

Total Reserve (A)

¥ 371,461 ¥ 564,290 ¥ (192,829)

Total Credit Amount (B)
Ratio (A) / (B) {%)

¥5,565,658 ¥6,809,440  ¥(1,243,782)
6.67% 8.29% (1.62)

Revitalization Law

assessed under the Financial Revitalization Law: loans
and bills discounted, foreign exchange, securities lent,
accrued income and suspense payment in other assets,

on the basis of the financial condition and operating per-
formance of the obligor.
. Bankrupt and Quasi-Bankrupt

in similar condition

Definitions of Claims Classified under the Financial

The asset quatlity of the following balance sheet items is

-and customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guaran-—- '
tees. The quality of these assets is categorized as follows

Claims against obligors under bankruptcy as provnded for
under the Bankruptcy Law, the Corporate Reorgarnization
Law, the Composition Law and similar laws, and obligors

" lar problems with financial condition or operating perfor-

Doubtful

Claims against obligors that are not yet in bankruptcy
but have experienced deterioration in their financial
condition and operating performance and for which
there is a high probability of contractual defaults on
principal and interest payments

Substandard . - -
Past due loans three months or more and restructured
loans, excluding those categorized as bankrupt, quasi-
bankrupt or doubtful

Narmal

Claims against obligors that are experiencing no particu-

mance and excluding claims in the three categories just
defined




Risk-Monitored Loans
The balance of risk-monitored loans on a non-consolidated
basis stood at ¥1,044.0 billion as of March 31, 2002, or
¥170.8 billion less than a year earlier.

On a non-consolidated basis, restructured loans were
¥273.9 billion, down ¥166.1 billion, and loans to borrow- -
ers in bankruptcy were ¥200.6 billion, down ¥157.9

Risk-Monitored Loans (Non-GConsolidated)

billion. Past due loans three months or more were ¥93.0
billion, up ¥80.2 billion from a year earlier, and past due
loans were ¥476.3 billion, up ¥73.0 billion.

On a consolidated basis, there was not much differ-
ence in risk-monitored loans, with the total standing at
¥1,043.5 billion.

Millions of Yen

March 31 . 2002 2001 Change
Loans and Bills Discounted . ¥5,012,174 ¥6,183,585 ¥(1,171,410)
Loans to Borrowers in Bankruptcy (A) 200,693 358,651 {157,957)
Past Due Loans (B) 476,377 403,317 73,059
Total (A) + (B) » 677,070 761,968 (84,897)
{Ratio to Total Loans and Bills Discounted) (%) 13.51% 12.32% 1.19
Past Due Loans Three Months or More (C) ¥ 93,075 ¥ 12,853 ¥ 80,222
Restructured Loans (D) - 273,909 440,097 (166,188)
Risk-Monitored Loans (A) + (B) + (C) + (D) 1,044,056 1,214,919 (170,863)
(Ratio to Tota! Loans and Bills Discounted) (%) 20.83% 19.65% 1.18
Reserve for Loan Losses ¥ 371,461 ¥ 564,290 ¥ (192,829)
35.58% 46.45% (10.87)

Reserve Coverage Ratio (%)

Risk-Manitored Loans (Consolidated)

Miliions of Yen

March 31 2002 2001 Change
Loans and Bills Discounted ¥4.801,904 ¥6,187,320 ¥(1,385,415)
Loans to Borrowers in Bankruptcy (A) 200,697 358,653 (157,955)
Past Due Loans (B) 475,200 402,880 72,320

- Total (A) +(B) _ 675,898 761,533 (85,635)

(Ratio to Total Loans and Bills Discounted) (%) 14.08% 12.31% 1.77
Past Due Loans Three Months or More (C) ¥ 93,568 ¥ 12,853 ¥ 80,714
Restructured Loans (D) 274,049 440,250 '(166,200)
Risk-Monitored Loans (A) + (B) + (C) + (D) 1,043,516 1,214,637 (171,120)

(Ratio to Total Loans and Bills Discounted) (%) 21.73% 19.63% 2.10
Reserve for Loan Losses - ¥ 370,033 ¥ 563,891 ¥ (193,857)
Reserve Covérage Ratio (%)

35.46% 46.42% (10.94)
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Definitions of Reserve for Loan Losses

The Bank makes provisions to the reserve for loan losses
based on established criteria for write-offs and reserves
according to the types of claims specified in the operat-
ing guidelines set forth by the Japanese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, as follows:

e For claims on borrowers in the normal and caution

in charge of the asset and then audited by an asset-
auditing section independent of the operating unit. Pro-
visions to the reserve are based on the results of this
review and auditing process.

Specific Reserve for Loan Losses

When certain facts make it clear that the collection of
individual loans and other claims is likely to be impos-

sible, the Bank makes pravisions to the specific reserve
for toan losses to provide for future fosses.

When such claims appear likely to be uncollectible
because of an application for commencement of bank-
ruptcy proceedings under the Corporate Rearganization
Law, or the obligor has shown negative net worth for an
extended period, or other standards become applicable
under tax laws, the Bank subtracts the amount of collat-
eral or other coverage from the amount of the loan and
is allowed to make provisions faor the remainder on a
non-taxable or faxable basis.

Reserve for Loans to Restructuring Countries

Provisions are made to the reserve for loans to restruc-
turing countries to provide for losses expected due to
political and economic conditions in the countries where
the loans are outstanding.

categories, including the special supervision segment
self-assessment category, provisions are made to the
general reserve for loan losses based on the Bank's
own historical experience of defaults.

e For claims on borrowers in the possible bankruptcy
category, the expected amount of recoveries from
collateral and guarantees is subtracted from the
claim, and the portion of the remaining amount is made
as a provision to the specific reserve for loan losses.
Similarly, for claims on borrowers in the virtual bank-
ruptcy and legal bankruptcy categories, the expected
amount of recoveries from collateral and guarantees
is subtracted from the claim, and the remaining
amount is made as a provision to the specific reserve.
These provisions are made on the basis of self-

assessments, which are performed by the operating unit
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As of March 31, 2002, the Bank's consolidated capital adequacy ratio increased 0.05 percentage point, to 17.04%.

Millions of Yen

March 31 ’ 2002 2001
Basic Items (Tier 1) {(A) ¥ 614,319 ¥ 559,615
Capital 451,296 451,296

Supplementary items (Tier 1)
Difference in Book Value Arising from Revaluation, after 55% Discount —_ —

General Reserve for Loan Losses 35,995 41,162
Subordinated Debt 332,196 561,535
Total ] 368,191 602,697
{Amount Eligible for Inclusion in Capital) (B) 368,191 559,615
Deduction (C) 639 173
Total Capital (D) [(A) + (B) - (C)] ¥ 981,871 ¥1,119,057
Risk Assets
On-Balance-Sheet Items ¥5,270,185 ¥6,350,103
Off-Balance-Sheet Items 489,097 235,908
Total (E) ¥5,759,283 ¥6,586,011
Consolidated Capital Adequacy Ratio
(Domestic Criteria) (D) / (E) (%) 17.04% 16.99%

32



Compliance Infrastructure

Shinsei Bank continually strives to achieve healthy and
proper management by maintaining a compliance system
that is worthy of society's trust.

Compliance Systems Organization

The Compliance Committee, the Legal and Compliance
Division and the individual compliance managers consti-
tute the main elements of the Bank’s compliance
organization.

The Compliance Committee, with the Bank’s president
as chairman, convenes on a monthly basis to examine and
discuss impartant matters such as the prevention of maoney
taundering, etc. Third-party manitoring of the Committee is
carried out by two lawyers invited to serve as outside
committee members,

The Legal and Compliance Division plans various mea-
sures concerning compliance risk for the entire Bank and
promotes these measures through central management.
The Division assigns compliance officers specializing in
specific areas to implement finely tuned compliance mea-
sures in accordance with each of the Bank's business
areas. .

Moreover, every division, department or branch has its
own compliance manager to act as the point of contact for
local compliance-related matters. This person works to
raise awareness toward compliance within his division,
department or branch through study meetings and the like,
and reports regularly on the compliance situation to the
compliance officer-in-charge at the Legal and Compliance
Division, ‘ :

The Legal and Compliance Division and the relevant
divisions of the subsidiary companies and affiliates monitor
the compliance situation of each company, and take
appropriate measures where necessary.

Compliance Activities

Every fiscal year the Bank produces a Compliance Program
that outlines compliance-related practice plans such as
compliance promotion activities, Related rules, training
and system maintenance are implemented based on this
program, Particular recognition is given to training, and
every year various training programs are conducted as the
tools through which the Bank instilis a solid compliance
consciousness in its staff.

Specifically, training programs are held for compliance
managers, with separate programs for important compli-
ance matters {such as the prevention of money laundering
and insider dealing). Compliance material is built directly
into the training curricula for each business unit {institu-
tional business, retail operations, efc.).

Legal Risk

Legal risk refers to the risk that causes unexpected loss or
generates dispute in dealings concerning the Bank, owing
to contravention of the faw or improper contracts.

As liberalization of the banking industry progresses in
Japan and Shinsei's business becomes increasingly diversi-
fied and specialized, the Bank emphasizes management of
legal risk and compliance as a vital fask in management
today. To this end, the Legal and Compliance Division was
created to specialize in such matters and ensure uniform
management. The Division takes measures fo achieve full
Bank compliance and promote understanding of legal risks,
with the Division’s Legal Department taking charge in such
matters as preventive law and lawsuits.
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Asset-Liability Management (ALM)

Shinsei Bank established the ALM Committee to compre-
hensively manage its assets and liabilities and to undertake
strategic balance sheet management. The committee
meets monthly to review ALM policies. The Bank president
holds the committee chairmanship, while the committee is
made up of group heads and general managers of divisions
whose operations are closely related to balance sheet man-
agement. The president retains final decision-making
autharity over ALM policy. Subordinate to the ALM Com-
mittee is the Market Risk Management Committee, which
convenes weekly to report on the Bank's overall market risk
position. Management receives updates concerning expo-
sure arising from trading and other market-related
operations, as well as ALM activities.

ALM Policy

In addition to determining ALM poticy for both banking and
trading accounts, the ALM Committee sets the Bank’s
policy for managing liquidity risk and for allocating capital
to individual operating divisions to improve the return on

risk taken. Following the ALM policies determined by the

ALM Committee, the Bank aims to optimize its balance
sheet and capital structures, while maximizing its medium-
to-long-term profitability.

ALM Methodology

By setting an in-house interest rate between the ALM .
Division and the respective funding and lending divisions
based on prevailing market rates, the Bank consistently
manages interest risk and profitability. The margin
achieved by each operating division in excess of the in-
house rate is treated as that division's own profit or loss,
while risk management arising from interest rate fluctua-
tion is the responsibility of the ALM Division.

Impact of 2 10 Bpv on Fair Market Value (As of March 31, 2002)

—

In managing interest rate risk, the Bank takes an inte-
grated approach to both on-balance-sheet transactions,
such as lending activities, and off-balance-sheet transac-
tions, such as swaps. Risk is analyzed and managed both
in terms of fair market value and profit or loss for a given
accounting period.

Fair market value is defined as the present value of
future cash flows discounted to reflect market interest
rates. Limits are set for fair market value risk according to
the basis point value (Bpv) method*, whereby risk arising
from interest rate fluctuation is restricted to a predeter-
mined proportion of the Bank's shareholder equity.

For profit or loss within a specific period, risk limits are
set based on net interest income (Nil). The Bank's future
balance sheet is estimated by constructing a hypothetical
model that includes expected rollover of lending and
deposits, together with information from the Bank's current
balance sheet and operational plans. NIl simulations are
carried aut using various statistically generated scenarios
for market interest rate fluctuations. Based on these calcu-
lations, fluctuations of net interest income over a year are
restricted to a predetermined range, with the objective of
stabilizing interest income and expenses.

In collaboration with the market operational divisions,
the ALM Division has worked to strengthen balance sheet
profitability through flexible ALM operations within risk
limits. The Bank will continue to improve risk analysis
methodology and simulations. As weli as developing more
effective ALM operational methods, the Bank is seeking to
maximize medium-to-long-term profitability.

*Bpv Method

The Bpv method measures the risk of changes in fair
market value accompanying fluctuations in interest rates.
For example, 10 Bpv means the change of fair market value
when interest rates move 10 basis points, or 0.1%. The
figures in the table below show the impact on the value of
on-balance-sheet and off-balance-sheet items for the
maturities shown when interest rates move 10 basis points.

(Billions of Yen)

Three Over Six Over One QOver

Months Six Months Months to Year to Three Three

or Less or Less One Year Years Years Total
On-Balance-Sheet ¥0.0 ¥(0.1) ¥(0.4) ¥0.2 ¥2.9 ¥2.6
Off-Balance-Sheet 0.0 0.2 0.3 0.3 (2.1) (1.4)
Total ¥0.0 ¥0.1 ¥(0.1) ¥0.4 ¥0.8 ¥1.2

Note: When figures are positive, a decline in interest rates will result in an increase in fair market value.
When figures are negative, a decline in interest rates will result in a decrease in fair market value.



Risk Management

Integrated Risk Management

Shinsei Bank considers risk management a top priority
fevel within overali bank management and is continually
working to improve its risk tracking and risk management
systems,

Basic underlying philosophy of the risk management
system
For-financia! institutions to conduct highly profitable
operations, risk control—knowing how to take and deal
with risk—is a major management issue that must be
addressed. . : -

To this end, internal control mechanisms are required to
confirm whether risk is being taken in accordance with the
Bank'’s overall policies and the policies for individual busi-

ness operations, whether risk is being contained within the”

proper limits and whether operational units responsuble for
risk are managing it appropriately.

Financial institutions confront various kinds of risk, in-
cluding credit risk, market risk, liguidity risk, operational
risk, computer system risk and legal and compliance risk.

Working toward integrated risk management

To gain an accurate picture of the aggregate risk held by
the Bank and undertake proactive risk management, the
Bank issued its Risk Management Policy in November :
2000, which sets out basic awareness regarding each type
of risk and fundamental policies for management of these
risks. In this policy, risk is recognized as being the life-
blood of a financial institution's business, and risk man-
agement is defined as a fundamental principle capturing
the risk to which the Bank is exposed. :

Furthermore, under the Risk Management Policy, the
Bank has substantially completed a comprehensive recon-
struction of all types of risk policies and administrative
systems.

Integrated risk management involves not only precisely
monitoring risks in various operations but also fully com-
prehending risks and quantifying them to the greatest
extent possible. The Bank is currently considering whether
to implement the concept of risk capital as an integrated
risk management method.

For those types of risk that do not easily lend them-
selves to quantitative measurement or are, in fact, very dif-
ficult to measure, the Bank continues to minimize risk by
segregating duties and expandmg and enhancing internal
aud|t functions.

Integrated risk management at Shinsei Bank
Commissioned by the Management Committee, the Bank
has established several committees to oversee manage-
ment of the various types of risk. These are the
Risk/Investment Committee, the Credit Committee, the
ALM Committee and the Market Risk Committee. Their
activities include the examination and discussion of risk-
related matters, drawing on the extensive experience and

professional knowledge of committee members and
determining risk management policies.

Moreover, the Bank has hired a Chief Risk Officer (CRO)
to preside over these risk management functions. The Bank
further strives to enhance integrated risk management
under the control and leadership of the CRO.

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk—the risk that a counterparty in a financial
transaction will become unable to meet its contractual
obligations owing to deterioration in its credit situation—
represents the largest potential impact on & bank’s perfor-
mance. Such risk is inherent in a range of transactions,
from lending and guarantees to market-related transactions
such as derivatives. Effective management of credit risk,
therefore, requires mtegrated cross-divisional management
systems.

Three major guadellnes govern sound credit operations
at a banking institution. These are: (1) securing-sufficient
return on.risk taken; (2) avoiding concentration of credit
within a particular sector; and (3} managing the lending
portfolio with an awareness of potential losses under the
worst-case scenario. To achieve these goals, the Bank has
two operational manuals detailing procedures for basic
credit policy and specific guidelines for credit risk manage-
ment, entitled Credit Policy and Business Operat:on
Standards for Credit Control.

As detailed below, Shinsei's credit risk management pro-
cess is divided into two broad categories: the management
of risk within individua! transactions and risk management
at the portfolio level.

Credit risk management in individual transactions
Organization and systems .

In credit risk management of individual transactions, it is
essential to establish effective checks and balances
throughout the credit process, from the development of
transaction opportunities, credit analysis and approval,
through post-closing account management. At the Bank,
credit approval authority is delegated to independent credit
sections in the Risk Management Group. In addition, the
Credit Assessment Division examines overall credit proce-
dures independently from relationship management and
credit divisions, creating an independent watchdog
function.

Credit approval authority is based on a committee sys-
tern to achieve greater objectivity and transparency in the
decision making process. Every level of credit authority is
strictly enforced, with each body having a defined sphere
of authority depending on such factors as approval amount,
established credit limits, and the conditions associated
with a particular transaction. Authority is divided among:
(1) the Risk/Investment Committee; (2) the Credit Commit-
tee; (3) the group heads’ council; and {4) the divisional
general managers’ council. The Risk/Investment Committee
also handles decision making for investment transactions.
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Ta meet increasingly diversified customer needs and
expand profit generation opportunities, the Bank actively
seeks out business in such innovative areas as loan trading
and asset securitization. To implement optimal risk man-
agement methods in these new business areas, the Bank
has hired staff from outside the organization who are
experienced in these products.

Credit rating system

In February 2001, the Bank introduced a new internal
credit rating system. The new system was the result of
changes in the Bank's business portfolio, as well as adjust-
ments resulting from our work with third-party credit rating
agencies. The new system features:

* improved precision of financial modeling and better

incorporation of qualitative factors in ratings

¢ consistency with third-party rating agency

methodalogy and across industry sectors

» compliance with consolidated accounting practices.

The credit rating model calculates preliminary ratings
based on credit data from third-party agencies. Where nec-
essary, aggregate adjustments are added and the ratings
are derived; The final credit ratings are decided through a
committee process, ensuring transparency. The Bank also
tests the consistency of the credit ratings and the obligor
category determined by self-assesments.

Credit ratings are used as a standard benchmark during
the credit approval process and for portfolio management,
thus forming the nucleus of the credit risk management
system.

Credit risk management at the portfolio level

Monitoring analysis system .

in addition to managing individual transactions through
proper risk analysis, it is essential 1o maintain a prudent
level of risk diversification across industries and credit
ratings at the portfolio level. The Portfolio Risk Manage-
ment Division carries out Shinsei's portfolio risk analysis
and monitors the risk diversification within different
categories, including industries, credit ratings, individual
customers and corporate groups. It also tracks and ana-
lyzes factors affecting credit ratings of customers within
the portfolio, reporting to management on a monthly basis.

Credit risk measurement

Credit risk is quantified through "expected loss"—the pos-
sibility of losses occurring owing to a change in the credit
standing of customers, calculated using historical default
and recovery data and forecasts.

A loss that exceeds the forecast expected loss owing to
the realization of a worst-case scenario is generally called
an “unexpected loss.” By calculating such an outcome, it
is possible to arrive at an accurate level of risk capital
associated with a specific transaction.

Calculation of expected and unexpected loss for a
transaction is reflected in the lending spread applied to it
and enables the Bank to obtain a level of return that is

commensurate with the risk associated with that transac-
tion. Furthermore, changes in risk capital and the return
obtainable from risk incurred are analyzed to practice
sound portfolio management and rational resource
allocation.

Credit risk in market transactions

The Bank manages the credit risk associated with deriva-
tives and other market transactions based on estimates of
fair market value and future changes in market value. Risk
associated with market transactions may change in magni-
tude as a result of changes in market rates after transac-
tion terms have been concluded. For this reason, the Bank
strictly manages this type of risk based on forecasts of
volatility of future value.

Self-assessments

Since the introduction of the Prompt Corrective Action
System in April 1998, Japanese financial institutions have
been required to assess their asset bases, including loan
portfolios (“self-assessments”), and make appropriate
write-offs and provisions to reserves for loan losses.

The Bank has established a self-assessment system
within the Credit Assessment Division, which takes ulti-
mate responsibility for fulfilling the self-assessment
requirements. The Credit Assessment Division reports -
directly to the senior management team and is indepen-
dent from the relationship management and credit sec-
tions. Specifically, the Bank has formulated a set of
standards and procedures for self-assessments based on
Inspection Manuals for Deposit-taking Financial Institu-
tions published by the Financial Services Agency. Initial
assessments are carried out by such divisions as relation-
ship management sections, secondary assessments are
conducted by credit sections and the final assessment is
made by the Credit Assessment Division.

The Bank will strengthen and maintain its systems to
prevent loans from becoming non-performing and to take
early and appropriate actions to deal with problem assets.
Such efforts include timely reviews of obligor categories
and loan asset classifications in response to changes in the
financial position of customers.

Market Risk Management

Market risk—the risk associated with changes in the value
of financial instruments arising from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, stock prices and other mar-
ket-determined price mechanisms—is inherent in all assets
and liabilities, as well as in off-balance-sheet transactions.
The Bank regards market risk management as a key ele-
ment of its risk management activities. Accardingly, the
Bank is working to improve its management systems in

this area.

Market risk management methods
By quantifying market risk on a frequent basis and tracking
it objectively and visually, the Bank has built a system



capable of facilitating the recognition and management of
risk, making adjustments according to market trends.
Market risk management involves the continual repeti-
tion of a five-step process. The first step is the construc-
tion of a transaction information database. The second step
is data classification according to risk management unit.
The third step involves risk quantification grouped by risk
characteristic and unit. The fourth step is risk position

reporting, and the fifth step is the assessment of a reported

risk position and implementation of any necessary adjust-
ments. To obtain a precise picture of the current risk posi-
tion, transaction data must be accurate and complete.
Measurement definitions must be valid and valuation crite-
ria such as rates and prices must be reliable. The Bank has
introduced a market risk measurement system that incor-
porates objective validity verification, paying careful atten-
tion to the accuracy and validity of transaction data and
valuation criteria. .

Risk management units are determined by organiza-
tional structure, nature of operations and products. Each
unit is assigned overall risk limits through the allocation of
loss amount fimits and permitted risk exposure amount
limits, By having all risk units fulfill their market opera-
tions within assigned risk limits, the Bank is able to adhere
to the market risk management objectives laid out by top
management.

In terms of market risk measurement methodo‘ogy, the
Bank uses the value at risk (VaR) method* in its trading
operations, and the Basis Point Value method (Bpv) in its
banking operations, as the principal risk indicatars. The
validity of the VaR mode! is verified through back-testing,
which examines how frequently actual daily profit or loss
exceeds daily VaR for a one-day holding period. Back-
testing of the sample data for the year ending March 31,
2002, confirmed the continued rehabmty of the Bank's
VaR model.

The VaR method is used to stattstsca!ly forecast the
maximum loss that is likely to be sustained based on
estimates of the degree to which fair value of the overali
portfolio may be impaired, using a specified holding period

VaR and Daily Profit or Loss (Back-Testing of Trading Operations)
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and confidence level, and based on analysis of past data of
market fluctuations.

Market risk management system and organization

Market risk is divided into two broad categories. The first is
passive risk arising from banking operations such as lend-
ing and debenture issuance. The other is active risk taken
and managed in trading operations. The Bank carries out
effective and efficient market risk management by concen-
trating jurisdiction ever market risk in both banking and
trading operations in the Markets Division. The Market Risk
Management Division is responsible for objective and
timely recognition, monitoring and reporting of market risks
in both trading and banking operations. |n addition to
reporting risk information to management, administrative
divisions and front office units, it carries out risk analyses
and recommendations. .

In actual trading operations, the transaction execution
sections, operations sections and risk management sec-
tions function independently, forming a system of effective
checks and balances within the Bank.

For senior management to take a [eading role in market
risk management, the Bank has established the Market
Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for the
functions of overall examination and evaluation of market
risk. The committee is a deliberative body ch‘arged with
reporting to and consulting with the ALM Committee, to
whom it is subordinate. The Market Risk Management
Commiittee is chaired by the head of the Risk Management
Group, and is made up of corporate executive officers
and general managers responsible for market-related
operations.

Market risk management outiook
Reflecting the increasing importance of market risk man-
agement since the early 1990s, the Bank has consistently
worked to improve its market risk management policies and
practices.

In the fast several years, new types of fmanc1al products
not traditionally associated with market risk have become

Back-Testing on the VaR Mode! Applied to Trading

Divisions’ Transactions

Back-testing involves comparing the actual losses and profits to
estimated VaR to confirm the reliability of the VaR method.

Assumptions of the Bank’s VaR Model

Method: Variance-covariance

Confidence interval: 2.33 standard deviations (99% confidence
interval)

Holding period: One day

Number of days of observations: 250

Coverage: Trading divisions

Number of data ‘points: Approximately 850 per day

4.57*VaR Me!hod

i The VaR method forecasts statlstu:aily the maximum loss and

£ risk that may be sustained based on estimates of the degree to
, which the fair value of the overali ponfono may be impaired,
f with a BPECifIEd tolding period and probability, based on

‘ ,analysm of past data on market fluctuatmns
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popular. One example is a credit derivative with a market
price that fluctuates with changes in credit risk. The Bank
aims to continually improve its internal controls in accor-
dance with developments in the capital markets in a timely
manner that is generally ahead of common market prac-
tice. The Bank believes its range of financial products and
services will be more attractive and better meet customers’
needs if it incorporates accurate risk recognition, sophisti-
cated management, intermediation and hedging of risks.

Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk—the danger that fund-raising may become
difficult or the cost of funds may become unacceptably
high owing to a fall in credit standing—affects not only
financial institutions but all enterprises equaily, since
funds with which transactions must be settled are a pre-
requisite part of all economic activity. Liquidity risk is
therefore a critical factor in companies’ quest for survival.
The Bank recognizes that its own level of liquidily risk is
highly correlated with the level of credibility it maintains in
the financial markets. Accordingly, the Bank constantly
strives to enhance its profile through all its business opera-
tions. Additionally, the Bank is building and implementing
management systems that quantify liquidity risks and allow
adjustments depending on each situation.

Other Types of Risk Management
Operational risk s
Operational risk—the risk that a Bank may incur loss or
damage as a result of errors or inappropriate activities in
the course of providing customer service—is another poten-
tial risk inherent in Shinsei's operations. Expanding retail
banking services, and the administrative functions that
support them, has become vital for banks. In light of this,
paying proper attention to related operational risks is
crucial to the Bank, : ’
To appropriately deal with such risk, the Operations
Planning and Administration Division seeks to simplify
administrative operations and implement thorough cus-
tomer service and administration training programs. To
further diminish the chances of suffering serious loss or
damage as a result of operational risk, the Bank has taken
steps toward risk diversification. In addition, the Bank
maintains backup systems to ensure continuous service for
customers, even in the event of a major natural disaster or
other emergency situation.

Computer system risk
Computer system risk has come under the spotlight in
recent years as banks’ online systems play an increasingly
vital role in the broader social infrastructure. To deal with
emergency situaticns, the Bank has formulated continuity
of business (COB) plans that include emergency communi-
cations plans and comprehensive operational manuals.

In the computer systems area, the Bank has taken thor-
ough and prudent steps to prepare itself for natural disas-
ters and criminal acts. The Bank has implemented crisis

management systems and facilities to ensure uninterrupted
service under a wide range of scenarios. For instance, the
Bank has been preparing a backup center to function in
parallel with the main computer centers; a complete dupli-
cation of computer hardware, software and data; and
backup telecommunication lines and power generating
equipment.

Internal audit

As the risks associated with banking operations have
become more diverse and complex, risk management in
each operational unit has become increasingly critical. Fur-
thermore, the role of internal audit in examining such risk
management has increased, necessitating more substantial
internal audit systems.

The Internal Audit Division, which as of last year reports
directly to Shinsei's president, is independent from the
operating units. The division comprehensively examines the
risk management situation of each operating unit in rela-
tion to organization, IT systems, procedure and implemen-
tation, and reports its findings and recommendations to the
president, as well as the Audit Committee and executive
officers in all line divisions.

The audit methodology is currently undergoing a transi-
tion from the past practice of visits to the Bank’s offices
and branches to a more effective method that closely
examines the degree of risk and level of preparedness asso-
ciated with each particular operating unit. To strengthen
internal audit capabilities, the Bank has upgraded neces-
sary infrastructure and developed a new audit methodology.
The Bank is also currently utilizing outside advisers to
further enhance audit standards. '

At the same time, o ensure credit operations are con-
ducted in a thorough and appropriate manner, the Credit
Assessment Division carries out audits based on [the
Bank's stated Credit Policy and Credit Procedure guide-
lines]. Audits focus on whether proper credit assessment
processes are being effected, and on the assigned credit
rating in the context of detecting any decline in the quality
of the Bank’s assets at the earliest possible time.

Legal and compliance risk

Legal and compliance risk—the risk that the Bank may
infringe statutes or ordinances in its business operations,
or enter into inappropriate contractual agreements that can
lead 1o losses or disputes—is increasing as the fiberaliza-
tion of the Japanese banking industry progresses and the
Bank’s operations are becoming more diverse and techni-
cal. The Bank considers legal risk and compliance manage-
ment as critical issues for business operations.

The Bank has established the Legal and Compliance
Division as a specialized unit charged with comprehen-
sively managing these issues. This division is pursuing a
range of measures to satisfy the Bank's compliance
requirements and to address litigation risk. For example,
the Legal Department is responsible for providing preven-
tive legal advice and dealing with lawsuits,



Consolidated Balance Sheets

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Subsidiaries
March 31, 2002 and 2001

Miltions of Yen

2002

2001

Thousands of
U.S. Dallars {(Note 1)

2002

ASSETS

Cash and Due from Banks (Notes 3 and 19) ¥ 342,055 ¥ 477,482 $ 2,567,987

Call Loans 296,559 276,000 2,226,419

Other Debt Purchased 68,980 18,555 517,870

Trading Assets (Notes 4 and 31) 443,972 382,222 3,333,124

Money Held in Trust (Note 5) 172,835 96,477 1,297,566

Securities (Notes 6 and 19) , 1,462,281 1,988,518 10,978,092

Loans and Bills Discounted (Notes 7 and 19) 4,801,904 6,187,320 36,050,335

Foreign Exchanges (Note 15) 149,251 10,771 1,120,504

Other Assets (Notes 8 and 19) 486,605 409,708 3,653,198

Premises and Equipment (Notes 9 and 19) 82,565 28,852 619,861

Deferred Discounts on and Issuance Expenses for Debentures 469 1,425 3,522

Deferred Tax Assets (Note 28) 17,695 30 132,847

Customers’ Liabilities for Acceptances and Guarantees (Note 18) 114,411 172,238 858,946

Reserve for Loan Losses (Note 10) (370,033) (563,891) (2,778,027)

Total Assets ¥8,069,554 ¥9,485,711 $60,582,244

LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities:

Debentures (Note 11) ¥2,786,355 ¥3,670,417 $20,918,588

Deposits, Including NCDs (Notes 12 and 19 2,260,755 3,218,835 16,972,636

Call Money (Note 19) 329,900 255,200 2,476,727

Comimercial Paper o 1,000 62,000 7,508

Trading Liabilities (Notes 13 and 31) 173,580 253,684 1,303,160

Borrowed Money (Notes 14 and 19) 459,272 550,835 3,447,992

Foreign Exchanges (Note 15) : 65 107 495

Collateral Related to Securities Lending Transachons 582,198 139,341 4,370,863

Other Ltabmt:es {Note 16) 707,042 539,505 5,308,126

Reserve for Bonuses Payable 8,584 7,081 - 64,448

Reserve for Retirement Benefits (Note 17) ° 22,766 - 19,612 170,917

Reserve for Loss on Disposition of Premises and Equipment 53 3,921 398

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Note 28) 0 10,084 2

Acceptances and Guarantees (Notes 18 and 19) 114,411 172,238 858,946

Tota) Liabilities 7,445,987 8,902,865 55,900,806

Minority Interests in Subsidiaries 33 — 250

Stockholders’ Equity:

Capital Stock (Note 20): S .
Common. Stock 180,853 - 180,853 1,357,761
Preferred Stock 270,443 - 270,443 2,030,354-

Capital Surplus (Note 20) 18,558 18,558 139,327

Earned Surplus {(Note 20) 145,094 94,194 1,089,297

Net Unrealized Gains on Securities Available-for-Sale, Net of Taxes 5,790 16,341 43,470

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments 2,794 2,455 20,979

Treasury Stock, at Cost (0} 0) (0)

Total Stockholders' Equity 623,534 582,846 4,681,188
Total Liabilities, Minority Interests in Subsidiaries
and Stockholders’ Equity ¥8,069,554 ¥9,485,711 $60,582,244

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2002 and 2001

Millions of Yen

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

2002 2001 2002
Income
Interest Income: ¥155,481 ¥211,468 $1,167,280
Interest on Loans and Discounts 116,577 169,142 875,205
Interest and Dividends on Securities 24,213 16,141 181,784
Interest on Receivables under Resale Agreement 0 — 1
Interest on Deposits with Banks A 4,538 11,687 34,074
Other Interest Income 10,151 14,496 76,216
Fees and Commissions 11,277 12,819 84,669
Trading Revenue (Note 21) 1,912 4,672 14,356
Other Operating Income (Note 22) 35,648 3,890 267,629
Other Income (Note 23) 42,241 75,167 317,127
Total Income 246,561 308,018 1,851,061
Expenses .
Interest Expenses: 67,072 125,624 503,546
Interest and Discounts on Debentures 43,124 82,809 323,760
Interest on Deposits 5,398 13,376 40,533
Interest on Borrowings and Rediscounts 13,207 20,594 99,157
Interest on Commercial Paper ' 15 53 118
Other Interest Expenses 5,325 8,791 39,978
Fees and Commissions 3,474 2,278 26,085
Trading Expenses 126 — 951
Other Operating Expenses (Note 24) 21,452 4,697 161,053
General and Administrative Expenses 69,514 63,899 521,879
Other Expenses (Note 25) 44,581 20,560 334,697
Total Expenses 206,221 217,060 1,548,211
Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests 40,339 90,958 302,850
income Taxes (Note 28):
" Current 314 442 2,360
Deferred (21,227) 56 (159,365)
Minority Interests in Net Income (Loss) of Subsidiaries 32 (6) 247
Net Income ¥ 61,219 ¥ 00,464 $ 459,608
Net Income per Common Share (Yen and U.S. Dollars) ¥ 21.11 ¥ 31.87 $ 0.16
Diluted Net Income per Common Share (Yen and U.S. Dollars) ¥ 15.10 ¥ 21.35

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2002 and 2001

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.8. Dollars {Note 1)

2002 | 2001 2002
Common Stock
Balance at Beginning of Year ¥180,853 ¥ 180,853 $1,357,761
Issuance of Common Stock — —_ _
Balance at End of Year 180,853 180,853 1,357,761
Preferred Stock
Balance at Beginning of Year 270,443 48,443 2,030,354
Issuance of Preferred Stock — 222,000 —
Balance at End of Year 270,443 270,443 2,030,354
Preferred Stock Subscription
" Balance at Beginning of Year —_ 240,000 —
- Issuance of Preferred Stock — (240,000 —
Balance at End of Year — — -
Capital Surplus '
Balance at Begmnmg of Year 18,558 281,413 139,327
Issuance of Common Stock — —_ —
Transfer to Deficit — (280,854) -
issuance of Preferred Stock —_ . 18,000 —
Balance at End of Year 18,558 18,558 139,327
Earned Surplus (Deficit) o
Balance at Beginning of Year - 94,194 (277,125) 707,164
Transfer from Capital Surplus — 280,854 ) —
" Decrease Due to Dividends Paid (10,319) - (77,475)
Net Income 61,219 90,464 459,608
. Balance at End of Year - 145,094 94,194 1,089,297
Net Unrealized Gains on Securities Avallable-for-SaIe Net of Taxes
Balance at Beginning of Year ’ 16,341 — 122,687
Net Change during the Year ' (10,551) 16,341 (79,216)
Balance at End of Year i 5,790 16,341 . 43,470
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments . T
- Balance at Beginning of Year 2,455 — 18,431
".Net Change during the Year 339 2,455 2,548
" Balance at End of Year 2,794 2,455 20,979
Treasury Stock
Balance at Beginning of Year (0) - (0) 0
Purchase of Treasury Stock —_ —_ -
~ Balance at End of Year _ (0) (0) 0
Total R SR T ¥623,534 ¥ 582,846 $4,681,188

Sge accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements,
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2002 and 2001

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars {Note 1)
2002 2001 2002
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income before Income Taxes and Minority (nterests ¥ 40,339 ¥ 90,958 $ 302,850
Depreciation 2,066 865 15,511
Amortization of Consohdatlon Goodwill 659 — 4,948
Equity in Losses of Affiliates 136 az 1,025
Decrease in Reserve for Loan Losses (193,857) (302,608) (1,455,390)
Increase in Reserve for Bonuses Payable 1,502 4,764 11,281
Decrease in Reserve for Derivative-Related Credit Risk — (1,295) —_
Increase in Reserve for Retirement Benefits 3,153 4,100 23,674
(Decrease} Increase in Reserve for Loss on Dlspo:su’uon of
Premises and Equipment (3,868) 3,841 (29,045)
Decrease in Other Reserve , — (0) —
interest Income (155,481) (211,468) (1,167,280)
Interest Expenses 67,072 125,624 503,546
Net Loss (Gain) on Sales, Redemption and Devaluation of Securities 8,425 (54,639) 63,252
Net Gain on Money Held in Trust (1,793) (340) (13,463)
Net Exchange (Gain) Loss (43,987) 11,930 {330,233)
Net (Gain} Loss on Sales of Premises and Equipment (1,115) 2,589 (8,372)
Net (Increase) Decrease in Trading Assets (59,286) 162,897 (445,093)
Net Decrease in Trading Liabilities (80,103) (24,192) (601,375)
Net Decrease in Loans and Bills Discounted 1,403,255 1,628,145 10,534,951
Net (Decrease) Increase in Deposits, Including NCDs (958,079) 441,318 (7,192,792)
Net Decrease in Debentures (other than Subordinated Debt) (754,892) (2,997,923) (5,667,362)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Borrowed Money (other than
Subordinated Borrowings) 35,605 (47,243) 267,307
2 Net Decrease in Due from Banks (other than
2 Deposit with the Bank of Japan) 204,466 479,624 1,535,031
£ Net (Increase) Decrease in Call Loans and Other Debt Purchased (70,983) 70,125 (5632,909)
S Net {Increase) Decrease in Collateral Related to Securities
; 2 ; Borrowing Transactions (122,394) 100,109 (918,878)
g Net Increase in Call Money and Commercial Paper 13,700 71,493 102,853
£ Net Increase (Decrease) in Collateral Related to Securities
( Lending Transactions 442,857 (707,692) 3,324,756
= Net Decrease in Payable Related to Trading Transactions (12,511) — (93,927)
£ Net (Increase) Decrease in Foreign Exchange Assets (138,479) 3,622 (1,039,635)
2 Net Decrease in Foreign Exchange Liabilities (41) (163) . (311)
£ Net Increase in Due to Rust Account 46,510 — 349,175
o Interest Received 129,322 204,082 970,890
Interest Paid (88,608) - (157,782) (665,229)
Net Decrease (increase) in Money Held in Trust 6,622 (94,455) 49,716
Others, Net 216,169 (240,891) 1,622,897
Subtotal » (63,620) (1,534,618) (477,631)
Income Taxes Paid (141) (618) (1,061)
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities . (63,761) (1,535,236) (478,692)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of Securities S (2,660,233) (7,192,332) (19,971,724)
Proceeds from Sales of Securities 1,217,776 4,136,735 9,142 468
Proceeds from Redemption of Securities 1,993,880 3,996,997 14,969,073
Investment in Money Held in Trust (Other) (2,113) (1,681) (15,870)
Proceeds from Disposition of Money Held in Trust (Other) 3,836 — 28,805
Investment in Money Held in Trust (Held to Maturity) (82,910) — (622,447)
Purchases of Premises and Equipment (63,258) (1,238) (474,911)
Proceeds from Sales of Premises and Equipment 15,260 6,332 114,569
Proceeds from Acquisition of New Subsidiary — 1,118 —
Payment for Acquisition of New Subsidiary ’ (1,322) — (9,930)
Payment for Investments in New Affiliates (410) — (3,083)
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities. 420,505 945,932 3,156,950
Cash Flows from Financing Activities: : .
Repayment of Subordinated Borrowings (134,500) (309,900) (1,009,760)
Payment for Redemption of Subordinated Debts {135,915) {74,188) {1,020,387)
Redemption of Foreign Bonds (11,700) (3) (87,838)
Dividends Paid ' (10,319) — (77,475)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (292,435) (384,092) (2,195,460)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents : 64,308 (973,396) 482,798
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 67,302 1,040,698 505,271
Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents Due to Inclusion
of Subsidiaries in Consolidation — 0] —
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year (Note 3) ¥ 131,610 ¥ 67,302 $ 988,069

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2002 and 2001

The acconﬁpanying consolidated financial statements of
Shinsei Bank, Limited (the “Bank"), and subsidiaries are
prepared on the basis of accounting principles and prac-
tices generally accepted in Japan and in conformity with
the Consolidated Financial Statements Regulation, and
are compiled from the consolidated financial statements
prepared under the standards of the Securities and
Exchange Law of Japan, which are different in certain
respects as to application and disclosure requirements of
{nternational Accounting Standards. _

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements are not intended to present the consofidated
financial position, results of operations and cash flows in
accordance with accounting principles and practices gen--
erally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than
Japan.

Certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been
made to present the accompanying consclidated financial
statements in a form that is familiar to readers outside
Japan. In addition, the accompanying notes include infor-
mation that is not required under accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in Japan, but is
presented herein as additional information.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
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(@) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank include
accounts of the Bank and subsidiaries. Major subsidiaries
for fiscal 2001 are listed below:

Percentage
Name Location Qwnership
Shinsei Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. Tokyo 100%
Shinsei Securities Co., Lid. Tokyo 100%

Shinsei Bank Finance N.V.

Shinsei Investment Management
Co., Ltd.. Tokyo 100%

BM Finance Co., Ltd. Tokyo 0%

Curagao 100%

reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

References to fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000 are fo the
Bank's fiscal years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

As permitted by the Securities and Exchange Law of
Japan, amounts less than one million yen have been
omitted. As a result, the totals do not necessarily agree
with the sum of the individual amounts.

Yen amounts, other than per share amounts, have been
rounded down fo millions of yen. All U.S. dollar amounts,
presented solely for the readers’ convenience, are trans-
lated at ¥133.20=U.5.$1.00, the rate of exchange
prevailing on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market on
March 29, 2002.

The inclusion of such dollar amounts is solely for con-
venience and is not intended to imply that yen amounts
have been or could have been converted, realized or
settled in dollars at that or at any other rate.

The Bank was placed under temporary nationalization
by the prime minister of Japan on October 23, 1998,
under Section 1 of Article 36 of the Financial Revitaliza-
tion Law, and had continued its operations in accordance
with Articles 47 and 48 of the same law. The Bank's
temporary nationalization status was terminated on March
1, 2000, when all common shares of the Bank held by
the Deposit Insurance Corporation of Japan (“DIC") were
transferred to New LTCB Partners C.V. in accordance with
the Share Purchase Agreement, dated February 9, 2000
(“Share Purchase Agreement”).

which the Bank, directly br indirectly, is able to exercise
significant influence over operations are to be accounted
for by the equity method.

The number of subsidiaries and affiliates at March 31,
2002 and 2001, were as follows:

2002 2001 Net Change
Subsidiaries 23 13 10
Affiliates Accounted for
Using the Equity Method 1 3 (2)

The Bank applied its consolidation scope using the
control and influence concept. Under the control and
influence concept, those companies in which the Bank,
directly or indirectly, is able to exercise controf over opera-
tions are to be fully consolidated and those companies in

All significant intercompany transactions, account
balances and unrealized profits and losses have been
eliminated in consolidation. The fiscal year-ends are
March 31 for 21 subsidiaries and December 31 for two
subsidiaries, of which one subsidiary is consolidated using
its March 31 financial statements and the other subsid-
iary is consolidated using its December 31 financial
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statements with appropriate adjustments made for signifi-
cant transactions during the period from its fiscal year-
end to the date of consolidated financial statements.

Any differences between the cost of an investment in
subsidiaries and the Bank’s share of the underlying equity
in the net assets of the subsidiaries are charged to income
in the year incurred as long as such differences are
considered to be immaterial.

(b) Translation of Foreign Currency Financial Statements

and Transactions

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are trans-

lated into Japanese yen at exchange rates as of the bal-

ance sheet date, except for stockholders’ equity, which is
translated at the historical exchange rate. Differences
arising from such translation are shown as foreign cur-
rency translation adjustments as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity in the accompanying consotidated
balance sheets.

(i) Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities
and the accounts of overseas branches are translated
into yen at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date, except for investment equity securities in
affiliates which are translated at the relevant historical
exchange rates. o

{ii)Foreign currency accounts held by consolidated foreign
subsidiaries are translated into the currency of the
subsidiary at the respective year-end exchange rates.

(c) Other Debts Purchased

Components of other debts purchased are principally
loans held for trading purposes. Loans held for trading
purposes are recorded at estimated fair value and unreal-
ized gains and losses are recorded in other operating
income/expenses.

(d) Valuation of Trading Account Activities

Trading account positions entered into to generate gains
arising from short-term changes in interest rates, currency
exchange rates or market prices of securities and other
market-related indices, or from price differences among
markets, are included in trading assets and trading
fiabilities on a trade date basis.

Trading securities and monetary claims purchased for
trading purposes are stated at market value and financial
derivatives related to trading positions are stated at the
estimated amounts that would be settied if such positions
were terminated at the end of the fiscal year, which
reflects liguidation and credit risks. :

Trading revenue and trading expenses include interest
received and paid, the amount of increases/decreases in
valuation gains/losses on the balance sheet date for
securities and monetary claims, and the net change in

valuation gains/losses during the year using the estimated
settlement prices assuming settlement in cash on the
balance sheet date for derivatives.

(e) Money Held in Trust

The components of trust assets are accounted for based
on the standard appropriate for each asset type. instru-
ments held in trust for trading purposes are recorded at
fair value and unrealized gains and losses are recorded in
other income/expenses. Instruments held in trust classi-
fied as available-for-sale are recorded at fair value with
the corresponding unrealized gains/losses recorded
directly in a separate component of stockholders’ equity.
Instruments held in trust classified as held to maturity are
carried at amortized cost.

(f) Securities
Securities other than investments in affiliates are classi-

-fied into three categories, based principally on the Bank's

intent, as follows:

Trading securities are securities held in anticipation of
gains arising from short-term changes in market value
and/or held for resale to customers. Trading securities are
carried at fair value with corresponding unrealized gains/
losses recorded in income.

Securities being held to maturity are debt securities for
which the Bank and its subsidiaries have positive intent
and ability to hold until maturity. Securities being held to
maturity are carried at amortized cost.

Securities available-for-sale are securities other than
trading securities and securities being held to maturity.
Securities available-for-sale are carried at fair value with
the corresponding unrealized gains/losses recorded
directly in a separate component of stockholders’ equity.
Cost of sale of these securities is determined by the mov-
ing average method. Securities available-for-sale for which
fair value is not readily determinable are carried at moving
average cost or amortized cost determined by the moving
average method.

Individual debt and equity securities are written down
when, in the opinion of management, a decline in esti-
mated fair value below the cost of such securities is other
than temporary.

Effective April 1, 2001, gensaki transactions (securi-
ties purchased under resale agreements and securities
sold under repurchase agreements) that are not for trading
purpose are accounted for as financing transactions and
not as purchases and sales. This change was required
based on the Accounting Standard for Financial Instru-
ments issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation
Council in January 1999.



The effect on the Bank's consolidated financial state-
ments of the adoption of the new standards was nil for the
fiscal 2001 year-end because there was no outstanding
balance in gensaki transactions.

(g) Depreciation Method"
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumu-
jated depreciation.

Depreciation of premises and equipment owned by the
Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries is computed prin-
cipally using the straight-line method for premises and
the declining-balance method for equipment over the
estimated useful lives of the relevant assets.

Capitalized software for internal use is depreciated
using the straight-line method based on the Bank and
subsidiaries’ estimated useful lives (mainly five years).
Capitalized software for internal use is included in other
assets. > :
The estimated useful lives at March 31, 2002, are
principally as follows:

Buildings .......... 6 years to 50 years
Equipment ........ 4 years to 15 years

Effective Apri) 1, 2001, the estimated useful lives for
computer system hardware were changed to 4 years for PC
hardware excluding server computers and 5 years for the
remaining hardware from 6 years. The effect of this
change was to decrease income before income taxes and
minority interests for fiscal 2001 by ¥132 million.

(h) Accounting for Lease Transactions

All leases by the Bank and its domestic subsidiaries have
been accounted for as operating leases. Under Japanese
accounting standards for leases, finance leases where the
ownership of the property is deemed to transfer to the
lessee are capitalized, while other finance leases can be
accounted for as operating leases if the reguired informa-
tion is disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s consolidated
financial statements.

(i) Deferred Charges
The Bank's deferred charges are amortized as follows,
Discounts on discount debentures are amortized by the
straight-line method over the terms of the debentures.
Debenture issuance expenses are amortized by the
straight-line method over the shorter of the terms of the
debentures or the maximum three-year period stipulated
in the Commercial Code of Japan. S
Subsidiaries’ deferred charges on the issuance of
debentures are amortized by the straight-line method over
the terms of the debentures.

Formation costs of subsidiaries have been expénsed in

the period incurred.

(j) Reserve for Loan Losses
The reserve for loan losses of the Bank and the domestic

trust and banking subsidiary have been established based
on the Bank’s internal rules for establishing the resetve, in
accordance with the criteria released by the Japanese
institute of Certified Public Accountants related to self-
assessment of asset quality for financial institutions.

The Bank has also taken into account the precondition
of exercise of the cancellation right in estimating the
reserve amount. Under the warranty of loan-related assets
described in the Share Purchase Agreement, a precondi-
tion of exercise of the cancellation right is the existence
of a defect and a 20% reduction of value.

All loans and commitments that the Bank has extended
10 its customers are classified into one of five categories
for self-assessment purposes: “normal,” “caution, includ-
ing special supervision segment,” “possible bankruptcy,”
“virtual bankruptcy” and “legal bankruptcy.” .

The reserve for loan losses for the “normal” and “cau-
tion” categories is calcuiated based on the specific actual
past loss ratios and is recorded as a general reserve.

The reserve for the “possible bankruptcy” category is
calculated based on the residuals, if any, considering the
debtor's ability to pay, where residual is the debt amount
after deducting the estimated recoverable value from dis-
position of coliateral and enforcement of any guarantees.
The reserve for the "possible bankruptcy” category is
recorded as a specific reserve.

The reserve for the "virtual bankruptcy” and “legal
bankruptcy” categories, is the amount in excess of the
estimated value of collateral or guarantees, if any, and is
recorded as a specific reserve.

All claims are assessed by the branches and credit
supewvision divisions based on the Bank's internal rules
for the self-assessment of asset quality. The Credit
Assessment Division, which is independent from the
branches and the credit supervision divisions, conducts
audits of these assessments.

For foreign claims, there is a reserve for loans to
restructuring countries, which has been established based
on losses estimated by considering the political and
economic conditions in those countries.

The other subsidiaries provide reserves for loan losses
at the amounts considered reasonable in accordance with
local accounting standards and also based on prior
experience with loan losses. - .
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(k) Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

Derivatives except for fund swap transactions and certain
currency swap transactions are stated at fair value in
principle. Derivative transactions that meet the hedge
accounting criteria are accounted for under a deferral
method whereby unrealized gains and losses are deferred
as assets or liabilities until the profits and losses on the
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hedged items are realized. The Bank principaily applies a
“macro hedge"” for interest rate derivatives used to man-
age interest rate risks and its asset/liability management
activities based on the report issued by the Japanese
institute of Certified Public Accountants (“JICPA"),
“Tentative Treatment in Accounting and Audit for Banks
on Application of Accounting Standard for Financial
Instruments.” The effectiveness of the macro hedge is
reviewed for a reduction in interest rate risk exposure
and the actual risk amount of derivatives within the pre-
approved limit under the Bank's risk control policies.

In addition to “macro hedge” accounting, a deferral
hedge accounting is applied for part of assets and liabili-
ties of the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries for fis-
cal 2001 and 2000 and fair value hedge accounting for
remaining hedged assets and liabilities of the Bank is -
applied for fiscal 2001. At March 31, 2002, the gross
deferred gains and losses were ¥37,428 million and
¥49,113 million, respectively, and the net amount is
included in other assets.

Fund swap and certain currency swap transactions are
accounted for on an accrual basis based on the repart
issued by the JICPA, “Temporary Treatment of Accounting
and Auditing Concerning Accounting for Foreign Currency
Transactions in the Banking Industry.”

For fund swap transactions, the amounts on the
balance sheet are net yen conversions of the principal
equivalents of assets and liabilities using the fiscal-year-
end exchange rate. Differences between spot and forward
rates in fund swap transactions are recorded in interest
income or expense on an accrual basis for the period from
the settiement date of spot foreign exchange to the settle-
ment date of forward foreign exchange. Therefore, accrued
interest income or expenses are recognized at the fiscal
year-end. ‘

Fund swap transactions are foreign exchange swaps,
and consist of spot foreign exchange either bought or sold
and forward foreign exchange either sold or bought. Such
transactions are contracted for the purpose of fund lend-
ing or borrowing in a different currency. Fund swap trans-
actions are used to convert the principal equivalent
amount into spot foreign exchange bought or sold with
regard to the corresponding fund borrowing or lending.
Also, such transactions convert the corresponding princi-
pal equivalents and foreign currency equivalents to pay
and receive, whose amounts and due dates are predeter-
mined at the time of the transactions, into forward foreign
exchange either bought or sold. :

For currency swap transactions which are for the pur-
pose of fund borrowing/lending in different currencies and
for which spot/forward are flat type, which means that

paying ot receiving amounts at the time of the currency
swap contract are equal to receiving or paying amounts at
the currency swap maturity dates and the swap rate ap-.
plied to principal and interest is the current market rate
(including the currency swap transactions which are that
the principal amount of one counterparty is revised in or-
der to reflect each exchange rate at the interest payment
date and are judged as spot/forward flat type for each in-
terest payment date), the amounts on the balance sheet
are net positions of financial asset and liability equiva-
lents translated by using the fiscal-year-end exchange
rate. The equivalent amounts of interest to exchange are
booked in interest income and expense accounts on an
accrual basis for the corresponding contract period.
Therefore, accrued interest income or expenses are recog-
nized at the fiscal year-end.

(I) Reserve for Retirement Benefits

The reserve for retirement benefits is provided for the
payment of employees’ retirement benefits based on the
estimated amounts of the actuarial retirement benefit
obligation and pension assets at the end of the fiscal year.
Net actuarial gain/loss is amortized using the straight-line
method over the average remaining service period from
the fiscal year of occurrence. The transitional unrecog-
nized net retirement benefit obligation of ¥16,753 million
is amortized using the straight-line method over 15 years.

(m) Reserve for Loss on Disposition of Premises and
Equipment

The reserve for loss on disposition of premises and equip-
ment is established based on an estimate of expenses

for interior finishing, etc., with respect to relocation of
departments within the Head Office building.

(n} Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes relating to temparary differences
between financial and tax reporting have been recognized.

(o) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand,
demand deposits with the Bank of Japan and non-
interest-bearing deposits.

(p) Appropriation of Earned Surplus

Cash dividends and transfer to legal reserve are recorded
in the fiscal year that the relevant proposed appropriation
of earned surplus is approved by the Board of Directors
and/or at the General Meeting of Stockholders.

{gq) Net income Per Share ‘

Net income per common share calculations represent net
income less dividends on preferred shares, divided by the
weighted average number of outsfanding shares of
common stock during the respective year.



The calculation considers the dilutive effect of com-
mon stock equivalents which includes preferred shares,
assuming that aif preferred shares were converted into
comman stock.

(r) New Accounting Pronouncements -
Effective April 1, 2002, the “Tentative Treatment in
Accounting and Audit for Banks on Application of
Accou‘nt'i'ng Standard for Financial Instruments” is no
longer applicable unless the Bank elects a one-year spe-
cial extension. This proncuncement requires a change to
fair value accounting from the deferral method for items
accounted for under the “macro-hedge” method. -

Also, effective April 1, 2002, the “Temporary
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Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Ac-
counting for Foreign Currency Transactions in the Banking
{ndustry” is no longer applicable. Accordingly, fair value
accounting will be applied for fund swap and currency
swap transactions subsequent to April 1, 2002.

The effect on the Bank's consolidated financial state-
ments of the adoption of fair value accounting on the
above items is not known and cannot be reasonably
estimated until additional analysis is completed.

(s) Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made in the fiscal
2000 consolidated financial statements to conform to the
presentation in fiscal 2001.

The reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at end of year and cash and due from banks in the consolidated balance

sheets at March 31, 2002 and 2001, was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars §
2002 2001 2002 2
Cash'and Due from Banks ¥342,055 ¥ 477,482 $ 2,567,987 -8
Interest-Bearing Deposits Included in Due from Banks -
(Other than Deposits with the Bank of Japan). (210,445) (410,180} (1,579,918}
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year  ~- ¥ 67,302 - $ 988,069

Tfading éssets at'i\/ié‘rch 31 ,2002 a'ncTZO(.)l, Eon%is?éd of the following:

¥131,610

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Trading Assets: . .
Trading Securities ¥256,100 ¥109,537 $1,922,678
Trading-Related Financial Derivatives 187,871 272,685 1,410,446
Total "¥443,972 ¥382,222 $3,333,124

Money held in trust at March 31, 2002 and 20()1, consisted of the following:’ '

Thousands of

" Miltions of Yen U.8. Dellars
- 2002 . 2001 ‘ 2002
Money Held in Trust:
Trading Purposes ¥ 87,832 ¥94 455 .. $ 659,407
Held to Maturity 82,910 —_ 622,447
Other - 2,092 2,022 15,712
----Total ~ ¥172,835 -¥96,477 . $1,297,566
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Securities at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millians aof Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Securities Being Held to Maturity ¥ 20 ¥ 20 $ 154
Securities Available-for-Sale

Marketable Securities, at Estimated Fair Value 1,416,034 1,902,885 10,630,887
Securities Whose Fair Value is Not Readily Determinable,

at Amortized Cost 45,587 85,590 342,248

Equity of Affiliated Companies, Using the Equity Method 639 21 4,803

Total ¥1,462,281  ¥1,988,518 $10,978,092

Amortized cost and estimated fair value of marketable securities at March 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows:

Millions of Yen

2002 2001
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unreaiized Estimated Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Securities:
% Securities Being Held to Maturity
g (Japanese Government Bonds Only) ¥ 20 ¥ 1 ¥ — ¥ 22 ¥ 20 ¥ 1 ¥ — ¥ 22
2 Secutities Available-for-Sale:
g ! Equity Securities 1,904 10 27 1,887 1,750 258 22 1,986
| E - Japanese Government Bonds 938,099 1,489 174 939,415 1,328,351 1,596 80 1,329,868
]l 2 Japanese Local Government Bonds L 0 0 25 o119 ‘ 4 - 124
; -2 Japanese Corporate Bonds 19,238 235 5 19,467 80,725 1,503 95 82,133
f 3 Other 447,414 13,907 6,082 455,238 465,511 24,310 1,049 488,772
g Total Securities Available-for-Sale  ¥1,406,681 ¥15642  ¥6,290 ¥1,416,034 ¥1,876459 ¥27,673 ¥1,247 ¥1,902,:885
g
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2002
Gross Grass
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gain Loss Fair Vaiue
Securities:
Securities Being Held to Maturity
(Japanese Government Bonds Only) $ . 154 % 13 % — 3 167
Securities Available-for-Sale:
Equity Securities 14,302 75 206 14,171
Japanese Government Bonds 7,042,787 11,186 1,307 7,052,666
Japanese Local Government Bonds 188 1 0 190
Japanese Corporate Bonds 144,431 1,766 43 146,153
Other 3,358,964 104,410 45,667 3,417,707

Total Securities Available-for-Sale  $10,560,672 $117,438 $47,223 $10,630,887

Amortized cost of securities whose fair value is not readily determinable at March 31, 2002 and 2001, was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
- . . 2002 - 2001 2002
Equity Securities : - - ¥ 2,083 ¥ 7,225 $ 15,638
Japanese Corporate Bonds 29,106 146 218,516
Foreign Securities 13,189 76,844 99,022
Other 1,208 1,375 9,072
Total ¥45,587 ¥85,590 $342,248
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Loans and bills discounted at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Miflions of Yen U.S. Doliars
2002 2001 2002
Loans and Bills Discounted:
Loans on Deeds ¥2,961,887 ¥3,709,984 $22,236,393
Loans on Bills 1,277,716 1,756,376 9,592,465
Bills Discounted 2,038 8,441 15,304
Overdrafts 560,203 712,512 4,205,732
Other 58 5 441
Total ¥4,801,904 ¥6,187,320 $36,050,335

(1) Past due loans include loans classified as “possible
bankruptcy” and “virtual bankruptcy” under the Bank'’s
self-assessment guidelines.

Loans and bills discounted include loans held by the
Bank and its subsidiaries to borrowers in bankruptcy total-
ing ¥200,697 million and ¥358,653 million as of March
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, as well as past due
loans totaling ¥475,200 million and ¥402,880 million as
of March 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

in addition to past due foans as defined, certain other
Joans classified as “caution” under the Bank's self-
assessment guidelines include past due (oans (three
months or more). o

Past due loans (three months or more) consist of loans
for which the principal and/or interest is three months or
more past due but exclude loans to borrowers in bank-
ruptcy and past due loans. The balances of past due loans
(three months or more) as of March 31, 2002 and 2001,
were ¥93,568 million and ¥12,853 million, respectively.

Restructured loans are loans where the Bank and its
subsidiaries refax lending conditions, such as by reducing
the original interest rate, or by forbearing interest pay-
ments or principal repayments to support the borrower’s

rearganization, but exclude loans to horrowers in bank-
ruptcy, past due loans or past due loans (three months or
more). The outstanding balances of restructured loans as
of March 31, 2002 and 2001, were ¥274,043 million
and ¥440,250 million, respectively.

(2) The total outstanding amount deducted from the loan
account for loan participation was ¥126,281 million as of
March 31, 2002. This “off balance” treatment was in
accordance with the guideline issued by the JICPA.

(3) The amount of foans sold through senior certificate
under a collateralized loan obligation (CLO) securitization
totaled ¥172,945 million for the year ended March 31,
2002, with the subordinated certificate retained by the
Bank totaling ¥65,253 million as of March 31, 2002,
recorded as loans.

A loan loss reserve was established based on the aggre-
gated amount ¥238,198 million of the senior certificate
portion and subordinated certificates portion, taking into
consideration all credit risks to be absorbed by the
subordinated certificates.

Other assets at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
- 2002 <2001 © 2002

Other Assets:
Accrued Income ¥ 42,506 ¥ 49,155 $ 319,117
Prepaid Expenses 872 623 6,554
Fair Value of Derivatives 37,710 66,283 283,113
~ Deferred Losses on Derivatives 13,326 —_ 100,050
Other B 392,189 293,644 2,944,364
Total ST ¥409,708 $3,653,198

¥486,605

49

2ty pajepyjosuog o1 sajaN

R

slwawaelg (B



50

2 D, Praquiess ana Eapiement |

Premises and equipment at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2002 2001 2002
Premises and Equipment:
Land ¥39,171 ¥ 4623 $294,078
Buildings 37,024 22,091 277,961
Equipment 6,979 6,775 52,402
Security Deposits 5,862 10,998 44,016
Other 1,111 167 8,348
Total 90,150 44,656 676,805
Accumulated Depreciation (7,584) (15,804) (56,944)
Net Book Value ¥82,565 ¥ 28,852 $619,861
Reserve for loan losses at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Reserve for Loan Losses: - ,
General Reserve ¥191,768 ¥220,677 $1,439,701
Specific Reserve 178,108 342,916 1,337,152
Reserve for Loans to Restructuring Countries . 156 296 1,174
Total ¥370,033 ¥563,891 $2,778,027
Debentures at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dellars
2002 2001 2002
Debentures:
Coupon Debentures ¥2,439,609 ¥2,949,633 $18,315,383
Discount Debentures 292,484 518,924 2,195,830
- Subordinated Debentures 54,262 188,545 407,375
Other — 13,314 —_
Total ¥2,786,355 ¥3,670,417 $20,918,588
Annual maturities of debentureé at March 31, 2002, were as follows:
. Thcuéands of
Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2003 ¥1,668,735 $12,528,043
2004 463,844 3,482,316
2005 - 195,016 1,464,084
2006~ 228,906 1,718,520
2007 and thereafter 229,854 1,725,625
“Total --- ¥2,786,355 $20,918,588
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Deposits, including NCDs, at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Deposits:

Current ¥ 26,231 ¥ 62474 $ 196,934
Ordinary 431,042 241,584 3,236,053
Notice 71,565 140,355 537,278
Time 1,239,561 1,621,203 9,306,020
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (NCDs) 395,893 1,053,493 2,972,171
Other — 96,460 99,724 724,180

Total ¥2,260,755  ¥3,218,835 $16,972,636

113, Trding Lekiies |
Trading liabilities at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of trading-related financial derivatives.

| 14, Bemowsd Meney |
Borrowed money at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thousands of |

a;epgasuaﬁ 01 520N

Miliions of Yen __US Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Borrowed Money:
Subordinated Debt ¥349,600 ¥483,100 $2,624,625 4
Borrowings from the Bank of Japan and Other Financial Institutions 109,672 67,735 823,367 L&
Total ¥459,272 ¥550,835 $3,447,992 :5:
&

Aqnu;lj maturities of borrowed money at March 31, 2002, were as follows:

. . - - : - Thousands of
Year Ending March 31 ' Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003, i ¥ 68,704 $ 515,800
2004 . : . 2,720 20,427
2005, o 115,270 865,392
2006 ‘ © 2,655 19,937
2007 and thereafter 269,921 2,026,436

Total ‘ ¥459,272 $3,447,992

The assets and liabilities related to forelgn currency trade financing activities of the Bank at March 31, 2002 and 2001,
consisted of the following: - -

Thousands of

K Millions of Yen _U_.§ﬂl3rs__
= 2002 2001 2002
Foreign Exchange Assets: -
" Foreign Bills Bought - : ' © ¥ 559 ¥ 661 $ 4,201
Foreign Bills Receivable © 3,128 4,205 23,484
Due from Foreign Banks : 145,563 5,904 1,092,819

- Total . ‘ ST . ¥149,251 ¥10,771 . $1,120,504
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{continued from previous page)

Foreign Exchange Liabilities:

Foreign Bills Sold ¥ — ¥ 2 $ —
Foreign Bills Payable (4] — 5
Advances from Foreign Banks — 3 —
Due to Foreign Banks 65 101 490
Total ¥ 65 ¥ 107 $ 495
Other liabilities at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Other Liabilities: )
Accrued Expenses ¥ 58,779 ¥ 85,970 $ 441,284
Unearned Income 6,746 11,525 50,652
Income Taxes Payable 403 230 3,028
Fair Value of Derivatives 51,204 67,412 384,421
Deferred Gains on Derivatives — 5,127 _
Other 589,908 369,223 4,428,741
Total ¥707,042 ¥6539,505 $5,308,126

o et Bens s

The Bank and certain of its subsidiaries have contributory and non-contributory defined benefit pension plans as well as

unfunded severance indemnities plans covering most of their regular employees.

The following table presents the funded status and actuarial assumptions at March 31, 2002 and 2001.

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2002 2001 2002

Projected Benefit Obligation ¥(80,560) ¥(78,417) $(604,809)
Fair Value of Plan Assets 40,364 41,012 303,036
Funded Status (Projected Benefit Obligation in Excess of Plan Assets) (40,196)  (37,404) (301,773)
Unrecognized Obligation at Transition 14,519 15,636 109,005
Unrecognized Net Actuarial Losses 2,910 2,155 21,851
Reserve for Retirement Benefits ¥(22,766) ¥(19,612) $(170,917)
Actuarial Assumptions

- Discount Rate S 2.80% 2.80%

"~ Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 3.10% 3.10%

The following table provides the components of net periodic retirement benefit cost for the plans included in general and

administrative expenses and other expenses for the year ended March 31, 2002 and 2001.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002

Service Cost ¥ 2,103 ¥ 2,267 $15,793
Interest Cost 2,149 2,350 16,137
Expected Return on Plan Assets (1,254) = (1,293) (9,415)
Amortization of Net Actuarial Losses (Amortized over 14.74 Years) 223 156 1,676
Amortization of Unrecognized Obllgatlon at Transition

(Amortized over 15 Years) : 1,116 1,116 8,385
Other (Extraordinary Severance Benefit Expe'nsed, etc.) 3,311 — 24,857
Net Periodic Retirement Benefit Cost ¥ 7,650 ¥ 4,599 $57,433
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Acceptances and guarantees at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thausands af

Miltions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Acceptances and Guarantees:
Guarantees ¥ 90,532 ¥148,043 $679,675
Letters of Credit 1,276 1,593 9,586
Other . 22,602 . 22,602, 169,685
Total ¥114 411 ¥172,238 . $858,946

Assets pledged as collateral and debts collateralized at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dellars
2002 2001 2002

Assets:

Cash and Due from Banks ¥ 3,290 ¥ 3,255 $ 24,706

Securities 416,756 875,405 3,128,800

Loans and Bills Discounted 133,422 146,466 1,001,667

Other Assets 9 10 ' 75
Debts: .

Deposits ¥ 1,550 ¥ 2535 $ 11,641

Call Money 240,800 185,200 1,807,808

Borrowed Money 20 47 153

Acceptances and Guarantees 6,226¢ ' 6,194 46,746

in addition, securities with a carrying value of
¥296,018 miltion as of March 31, 2002, and securities
with a carrying value of ¥485,426 million as of March
31, 2001, are pledged as collateral for transactions,
including exchange settiements, swép tf_ansactions and
the replacement of margin for future trading.

The authorized number of shares of capital stock {common stock and preferred stock) as of March 31, 2002, was as follows:

(i) 5,000,000 thousand common shares.

Also, ¥6,251 million and ¥10,998 million of security
deposits are included in premises and equipment, ¥1,064
million and ¥775 million of margin deposits for futures
transactions outstanding are included in other assets as of
March 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and collateral
related to securities borrowing transactions were '
¥125,262 million as of March 31, 2002,

(ii) 674,528 thousand preferred shares, non-voting and ranking prior to common shares with respect to payment of divi-
dends and distribution on liquidation or winding-up of the Bank. The dividend rate and redemption and conversion-
rights, if any, are to be determined by the Board of Directors of the Bank prior to issuance.
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The changes in the capital stock and capital surplus accounts for the years ended March 31, 2001 and 2002, were

as follows:
Millions of Yen
Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Capital
Comman Stock Series 2 Series 3 . Surplus
Shares Shares Shares
(Thousands) Stated Value {Thousands) Stated Value {Thousands) Stated Value Stated Value
Fiscal 2000
Beginning of Year 2,717,075 ¥ 180,853 74,528 ¥ 48,443 600,000 ¥ 240,000 ¥ 281413
Issuance of New Stocks - — —_ — 600,000 222,000 18,000
Transfer to Deficit .= — — — — — (280,854)
End of Fiscal 2000 2,717,075 ¥ 180,853 74,528 ¥ 48,443 600,000 ¥ 222,000 ¥ 18,558
Fiscal 2001 '
Beginning of Year 2,717,075 ¥ 180,853 74,528 ¥ 48,443 600,000 222,000 ¥ 18,558
End of Fiscal 2001 2,717,075 ¥ 180,853 74,528 ¥ 48,443 600,000 ¥ 222,000 ¥ 18,558
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (133.20) —  $1,357,761 —_ $363,688 — $1,666,666 §$ 139,327

Under the Japanese Commercial Code:

Japanese banks are subject to the Japanese Commaercial
Code (the “Code"”) to which certain amendments became
effective from October 1, 2001, and to the Japanese
Banking Law (the “Banking Law"), also to which certain
amendments became effective from October 1, 2001.

Prior to October 1, 2001, the Code required at least
50% of the issue price of new shares, with a minimum of
the par value thereof, to be designated as stated capital
as determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. Pro-
ceeds in excess of amounts designated as stated capital
were credited to additional paid-in capital. Effective
October 1, 2001, the Code was. revised and common
stock par values were eliminated resulting in ali shares
being recorded with no par value. ‘

Prior to October 1, 2001, the Banking Law provided
that an amount at {east equal to 20% of the aggregate
amount of cash dividends and certain other cash pay-
ments which are made as an appropriation of retained
earnings applicable to each fiscal period shall be appro-
priated and set aside as a legal reserve until such reserve
equals 100% of stated capital. Effective October 1,
2001, the revised Banking Law allows for such appropria-
tions to be set aside as a legal reserve until the total addi-
tional paid-in capital and legal reserve equals 100% of
stated capital. The amount of total additional paid-in
capital and legal reserve which exceeds 100% of stated
capital can be transferred to retained earnings by resolu-
tion of the stockholders, which may be available for
dividends. The Bank's earned surplus of ¥121,172 mil-
lion, exclusive of legal reserve, at March 31, 2002, is
available for cash dividends and other cash payments
which are made as an appropriation of earned surplus.
The Bank's iegal reserve amount, which is included in
earned surplus, totaled ¥2,064 miilion ($15,496 thou-
sand) as of March 31, 2002 (nil as of March 31, 2001).

Under the Code, companies may issue new common
shares to existing stockholders without consideration as a
stock split pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Direc-
tors. Prior to October 1, 2001, the amount calculated by
dividing the total amount of stockholders’ equity by the
number of outstanding shares after the stock split could
not be less than ¥50. The revised Code eliminated this
restriction. ‘

Prior to October 1, 2001, the Code imposed certain
restrictions on the repurchase and use of treasury stock.
Effective October 1, 2001, the Code eliminated these
restrictions allowing companies to repurchase treasury
stock by a resolution of the stockholders at the general
stockholders’ meeting and dispose of such treasury stock
by resolution of the Board of Directors after March 31,
2002. The repurchased amount of treasury stock cannot
exceed the amount available for future dividend plus
amount of stated capital, additional paid-in capital or
legal reserve to be reduced in the case where such reduc-
tion was resolved at the general stockholders’ meeting.

The Code permits companies to transfer a partion of
additional paid-in capital and legal reserve to stated capi-
tal by resolution of the Board of Directors. The Code also
permits companies to transfer a portion of unappropriated
retained earnings, available for dividends, to stated
capital by resolution of the stockholders.

Dividends are approved by the stockholders at a meet-
ing held subsequent to the fiscal year to which the divi-
dends are applicable. Semiannual interim dividends may
also be paid upon resolution of the Board of Directors,
subject to certain limitations imposed by the Code and
Banking Law.

During fiscal 2000, the Bank transferred capital
surplus to reduce the deficit in accordance with the
resolution of the stockholders’ meeting held on June 28,
2000.



Holders of Series 2 preferred shares issued on March
31, 1998, are entitled to priority over common stack as to
the payment of dividends and as to distributions on liqui-
dation of the Bank, to receive non-cumulative dividends of
¥13 and a distribution of ¥1,300 per preferred share
upon liquidation.

Series 2 preferred shares are convertible on or after
October 1, 1998, and up to and includ'ihg March 31,
2008, at the option of the stockholders, into fully paid
shares of common stock of the Bank at an |nmal
exchange price of ¥326, which was subsequent(y adjusted
to ¥180 on or after October 1, 1899, - -~

Unless previously converted at the option of Series 2
preferred stockholders, al! outstanding Series 2 preferred
shares will ba mandatorily exchanged for fully paid shares
of common stock on April 1, 2008, at the number of com-
mon shares calculated by dividing ¥1,300 by the average
market price per share during a certain period preceding
April 1, 2008, with a maximum cap of four common
shares per one Series 2 preferred share.

Under the Code, holders of preferred'é_ha'res are not
entitled to execute vofing rights if the brésc’ribed dividend
is paid. Holders of Series 2 preferred shares currently
have no voting rights as of March 31, QOOZ since the
prescribed dividend was pafd with an. approval at the June
29, 2001, stockholders’ meeting. Lt

On March 31, 2000, the Bank recewed the proceeds
from the subscription of 600,000 thousand Series 3 pre-
ferred shares, subsequently issued on April 1, 2000, in
accordance with the Financial Function Early Strengthen-
ing Law, at a price of ¥400 per share for gross proceeds

of ¥240,000 million, of which ¥18,000 mitlion was
transferred to the capital surplus account in accordance
with the Code. The issuance costs were expensed when
incurred.

The Bank issued Series 3 preferred stock, as follows, to
Resolution and Collection Corporation on Aprii 1, 2000;
as a result, the capital stock amount increased by
¥222,000 million.

(1) Shares Issued 600,000 thousand shares

(2) Issued Price per Share ¥400
(3) Amount for Designation of
Capital Stock per Share ¥370

The Series 3 preferred stockholders are entitled, with
priority over common stock and an equal ranking with
Series 2 preferred stocks over any payment of dividends
and distributions upon liquidation, to receive non-
cumulative dividends of ¥4.84 and a distribution of ¥400
per preferred share upon liquidation. Series 3 preferred
shares are convertible on or after August 1, 2005, and up
to and including July 31, 2007, at the option of stock-
holders, into fully paid shares of common stock of the
Bank. On August 1, 2007, the Series 3 preferred shares
become mandatorily convertibie. The conversion shall be
for the number of common shares calculated by dividing

_ ¥400 by the average market price per share during a cer-

tain period preceding August 1, 2005, 2006 or 2007, as
applicable, or “net asset value,” as defined, per common
share if the shares are not publicly traded. At no time,
however, shall the conversion price be less than ¥300 nor
mare than ¥400.

Trading revenue for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.$. Dollars

2002 2001 2002

Trading Revenue: - .
_Revenue from Tradmg Securities ¥ 542 ¥ 102 $ 4,069
Revenue from Derivatives of Trading Secuntues 156 66 1,177
Revenue from Trading-Related Financial Derivatives Transactions 1,213 3,960 9,110
Other — 542 —
Tota! ¥1,912 ¥4,672 $14,356
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Other operating income for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dellars
2002 2001 2002
Other Operating Income:

Gain on Foreign Exchange Transactions ¥ 2,260 ¥1,449 $ 16,973
Gain on Sales of Bonds 3,985 1,098 29,923
Gain on Redemption of Bonds — 1 —
Other ' 29,401 1,341 220,733

Total ¥35,648 ¥3,890 $267,629

i

Other income for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of |
U.S. Dollars

2002 2001 2002
Other Income:
Gain on Sales of Stocks and Other Securities ¥ 5,571 ¥58,258 $ ‘41,829
Gain on Money Held in Trust 21,902 1,928 164,433
Gain on Disposal of Premises and Equipment ‘ 10,587 2,014 79,485
Recoveries of Written-Off Claims 4 703 31
Other ‘ 4,175 12,262 31,349
Total : v ¥42,241 ¥75,167

| 25O O B
Other operating expenses for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Mitiions of Yen

$317,127

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2002 2001 2002
Other Operating Expenses:

Amortization of Debenture Issuance Expenses ¥ 585 ¥ 870 $ 4,392
Loss on Sales of Bonds . 5,485 2,825 41,184
Loss on Redemption of Bonds — 1 —_
Loss on Devaluation of Bonds 1,618 192 12,150
Other 13,763 806 103,327

Total ¥21,452 ¥4,697 $161,053




Other expenses for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Other Expenses:

Provision for Loan Losses ¥ 728 ¥ — $ 5471
Written-Off Claims - 160 29 1,203
Loss on Sales of Stocks and Other Securities 845 304 6,345
Loss on Devatuation of Stocks and Other Securities 10,033 1,394 75,326
Loss on Money Held in Trust 6,768 1,587 50,815
Equity in Net Loss of Affiliates 136 82 - 1,025
Loss on Disposal of Premises and Equipment 9,419 4,604 70,716
Provision for Loss on Disposition of Premises and Equipment X — 398
Loss on Write-Off of “Due from DIC"CD —_ 4,868 —
Other ‘ 16,436 7,688 123,398

Total ¥44,581 ¥20,560 $334,697

Note:

1 Dye from DIC was a claim for the compensation of losses incurred during the temporary nationalization period pursuant to articles 62 and 72 of the
Financial Reconstruction Law, This loss was incurred as a result of the settlement pursuant to an agreement dated January 5, 2001, between the Bank,
the DIC and New LTCB Partners C.V.
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March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:
" As Lessee v T A B o
Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net balance of leased property at March 31, 2002 and 2001, were as
follows: ’
Thousands of
) . Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Leased Assets - -- ' . - 2002 2001 - 2002
Acquisition Cost: :

Equipment ¥1,629 ¥3,585 $12,234

Other 529 813 3,974
Total ¥2,158 ¥4,398 $16,208
Accumulated Depreciation: ‘

Equipment ‘ ¥1,086 ¥2 043 $ 8,160
Other : 378 532 2,845
© ~ Total - ' - ¥1,465 ¥2,576 $11,005

Net Balance: ' , - :

Equipment T ¥ 542 ¥1,541 $ 4,074

Other - 150 280 1,129
Total : ‘ ' B = ¥ 693  ¥1,822 $ 5,203

57



nancial Statements

Notes to Consol

58

Lease obligations at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Obligations:
Due within Qne Year ¥373 ¥ 849 $2,807
Due after One Year 340 1,048 2,558
Total ¥714 ¥1,898 $5,365

Total lease payments were ¥718 million and ¥1,518 million for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, and depreciation expenses were ¥671 million and ¥1,425 million for the years ended March 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the life of the respective leased assets

with zero residual value,
As Lessor

Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net balance of leased property at March 31, 2002 and 2001, were

as follows:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Leased Assets 2002 2001 2002
Acquisition Cost:
Equipment ¥7,596 ¥25,496 $57,028
Other 1,925 3,123 14,459
Total ¥9,522 ¥28,619 $71,487
Accumulated Depreciation:
Equipment ¥3,941 ¥ 279 $29,587
Other 758 — 5,696
Total ¥4699 ¥ 279 $35,283
Net Balance:
Equipment ¥3,655 ¥25,216 $27,441
Other 1,167 3,123 8,763
Total ¥4,822 ¥28,339 $36,204
Future lease payment receivables as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:
’ Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dallars
) 2002 2001 2002
Receivables: - .
Due within One Year ¥3,144 ¥13,481 $23,608
Due after One Year 1,676 14,901 12,590
Total ¥4,821 ¥28,383 $36,198

Total lease revenues were ¥10,929 million and ¥39 million for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, respec-
tively, and depreciation expenses were ¥8,988 million and ¥36 million for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the lease term with zero residual value.

(2) Non-cancelable operating leases as lessee at March 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Obligations:
Due within One Year ¥1 ¥0 $11
Due after One Year 4 2 33
Total ¥5 ¥3 $44
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(a) Business Segment information

The Bank and ifs subsidiaries are engaged in banking and
other related activities such as trust, securities and other
businesses. Such segment information, however, has not
been presented as the percentage of the other activities
is not matetial to the banking business. ' ,

(b) Geogﬁraphic Segment Information

Since the proportion of business that the Bank conducts
in Japan exceeds 90% of operating income, geographic
segment information is not presented. -

|2 o ey

(c) Foreign Operating income

Foreign operating income comprises transactions at the
Bank’s overseas branch and income from the overseas
consolidated subsidiary. The composition of this volume of
transactions does not reach 10% of operating income,
therefore foreign operating income segment information is
not presented.

The Bank is subject to a number of taxes based on income, such as the corporation tax, inhabitants tax and enterprise tax,
which, in the aggregate, resulted in a normal effective statutory tax rate of approximately 38.1% for the year ended March

31, 2002, and 38.7% for the year ended March 31, 2001,

_ A reconciliation of the actual effective tax rate with the normal effective statutory tax rate for the years ended March 31,

2002 and 2001, was as follows:

2002 200!
Normal Effective Statutory Tax Rate - ’ 38.1% 38.7%
Increase (Decrease) in Taxes Resulting from:
Permanently Non-Deductible Expenses 0.1 0.1
Non-Taxable Dividends Received . — (0.4)
~ Valuation Allowance ' 94.0) (42.8)
Change in Enacted Tax Rate 2.1 ' 4.2
Amortization of Consolidation Goodwill — 0.1
Other 1.9 0.7
Effective Income Tax Rate (%) (51.8)% 0.6%
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The tax effects of significant temporary differences and loss carryforwards, which resulted in deferred tax assets and

liabilities, at March 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows:

Thousands of

Mitlions of Yen .S, Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Deferred Tax Assets:
Reserve for Loan Losses ¥ 126,838 ¥ 159,142 $ 952,239
Tax Loss Carryforwards 281,671 269,953 2,114,650
Securities 6,859 2,272 51,496
Unamortized Gain on Swap Cancellation 4,051 7,105 "30,418
Reserve for Retirement Benefits 8,167 7,056 61,317
Unrealized Losses on Money Held in Trust 2,934 — 22,029
Reserve for Bonuses Payable 2,489 2,334 18,693
Other 6,893 8,711 51,754
Subtotal ¥ 439,905 ¥ 456,573 $ 3,302,596
Valuation Allowance (418,637) (456,543) (3,142,921)
Total Deferred Tax Assets ¥ 21,268 ¥ 30 $ 159,675
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Unrealized Gains on Securities Available-for-Sale ¥ 3,562 ¥ 10,084 $ 26,745
Other 10 — 83
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities ¥ 3,573 ¥ 10,084 $ 26,828
Net Deferred Tax Assets ¥ 17,695 ¥ — $ 132,847
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities — 10,054 —_

t

s R i - o o R = ‘i

The Bank issues commitments to extend credit and estab-
lishes credit tines for overdraft by making agreements to

meet the financing needs

of its customers. Unfunded

~amounts of these commitments are ¥1,352,246 million,
out of which the remaining agreement terms of less than
one year are ¥1,119,730 million. Since a large majority
of these commitments expire without being drawn upon,
the unfunded amaunts do not necessarily represent future

| 90 Prleted Bavy T

Related party transactions for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows:

cash requirements. Many of such agreements include con-
ditions to the effect that the Bank has the right to reject
the drawdown or to reduce the amount depending on
changes in financial circumstances, protection of claims
or other reasonable grounds.

In addition, the Bank obtains collateral when necessary
to reduce credit risk related to these commitments.

Amounts of the Transactions

Thousands of

Corporation

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Related Party Categary Description of the Transactions 2002 2001 2002

Ripplewood Hotdings Companies in which the majority Expense for advisory service ¥472 ¥472 $3,547
Management LLC ¢V vote is owned by directors

JCF Management Companies in which the majority Expense for advisory service — 176 -
LLC ¢ vote is owned by directors

JCF Management Companies in which the majority Expense for advisory service 492 334 3,698
L.p¢2 vote is owned by directors

J.C. Flowers & Cq., Companies in which the majority Income for sublease of 65 — 495
LLC t2 vote is owned by directors office rent

New LTCB Partners C.V. Maijor stockholdets income for costs assumed in - 2,100 —

previous year 3!
Resolution and Collection  Major stockholders Time deposit — 140,000 —

Notes: ¢! A director of the Bank, Mr. Timothy C. Collins, essentially holds the majority vote and serves concurrently as senior managing director and CEQ

of the company.

2 A director of the Bank, Mr. J. Christopher Flowers, essentially holds the majority vote and serves concusrently as a member of the companies.
3) The investors of New LTCB Partners C.V. (Partners) assumed the cost of the advisory fee in the amount of ¥2,100 million, which was paid to
Ripplewood Holdings Management LLC and JCF Management LLC in the year ended March 31, 2000.



Purposes

The Bank and its subsidiaries use derivative financial
instruments primarily to hedge risks for customers and to
manage the potential risks in their own portfolios of assets
and liabilities as a part of asset and liability management.

Risk Exposure

Derivative transactions may be subject to complex risk
factors, including market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
operational risk, legal risk, etc. The Bank controls these
risks under its risk management system. To manage mar-
ket risk, the Bank and its subsidiaries use Value-at-Risk
(VaR) modeling to quantify the maximum total exposure,
In the internal model, the Bank measures the VaR based
on one year of historical data and the assumptions of a
10-day holding pericd and a 99% confidence interval. .
According to this model, the maximum VaR due to general
market risk in the Bank's trading account including
derivatives was ¥1,205 million in fiscal 2001, the mini-
mum was ¥98 million and the average was ¥587 million.
In fiscal 2000, the maximum VaR was ¥407 million, the
minimum was ¥113 million and the average was ¥233
million. To manage credit risk, the Bank utilizes the cur-
rent exposure and potential exposure, particularly for OTC

(a) Interest Rate-Related Transactions

derivatives such as swap transactions. The consolidated
credit risk amount under the capital adequacy ratio for
domestic banking was calculated as ¥297.4 billion and
¥306.9 billion as of March 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Risk Management System

The Risk Management Division, which is independent of
the front office, is responsible for risk management for the
entire Bank. This division controls market risk measures
on a daily basis, monitors the market risk status of both
the Banking and Trading divisions and reports to the
directors in charge periodically. Credit risk is also con-
trolled by the-unified credit line established for major
derivative products. Credit exposure is monitored accord-

_ingly and the Bank may require collateral, etc. to reduce

credit risk as the case may be.

It should be noted that the nominal contract value or
notional principal amount is used in determining the
value of receipts or payments of interest and as an
indicator representative of the volume of transactions,
but those values do not necessarily reflect market risk or
credit risk, etc.

Interest rate-related transactions for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows:

Millions of Yen

2002 2001
Contractual Value or Cantractual Value or
Notional Principal Amount Notiona! Principal Amount
Maturity Market Unrealized Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over One Year Value Gain (Loss) Total over One Year Value Gain (Loss)
Futures Contracts (Listed): ‘ )
Soid ¥ 191902 ¥ 12602 ¥ 263 ¥ 263 . ¥ 15966 ¥ — ¥ 1 ¥ i
Bought T e31720 0 29531 (342) (342) 58,917 1,468 34 34
interest Rate Swap (Over-the-Counter):
Receive Fixed and Pay Floating 3,719,928 2,384,640 182,319 182,319 5,306,030 3,569,858 256,094 256,094
Receive Floating and Pay Fixed 3,275,534 2,149,398 (147,998) (147,998} 4,378,647 3,027,089 (200,877}  (200,877)
Receive Floating and Pay Floating 242,800 158,872 1,119 1,119 322,173 259,042 2,364 2,364
Receive Fixed and Pay Fixed 9,301 9,211 18 18 5,302 4,302 41 '41
Interest Rate Options (Over-the-Counter): L o
Sold 367,081 325,028 (2,148) _ (2,148) 428,154 364,597 (2.846)' (2,846)
Bought ' 193,432 144,800 841 841 214443 187200 938 - 938
_—" " ¥55750 ¥ 55750

Total " " ¥ 3072 ¥ 34072
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Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2002
Contractual Value or
Notional Principal Amount
Maturity Market Unrealized
Totat over One Year Value Gain {Loss)
Futures Contracts (Listed):
Sold $ 1,440,713 § 94,610 § 1,980 $ 1,980
Bought 699,497 221,705 (2,568) (2,568)
Interest Rate Swap (Qver-the-Counter):
Receive Fixed and Pay Fioating 27,927,394 17,902,706 1,368,763 1,368,763
Receive Floating and Pay Fixed 24,591,101 16,136,627 (1,111,099) (1,111,099)
Receive Floating and Pay Floating 1,822,824 1,192,738 8,404 8,404
Receive Fixed and Pay Fixed 69,828 69,153 140 140
Interest Rate Options (Over-the-Counter):
Sold 2,755,866 2,440,157 (16,133} (16,133)
Bought 1,452,192 1,087,087 6,315 6,315

Total _—" _—" % 255802 § 255,802

(1) Derivatives included in the table above were marked to

market and the unrealized gain and loss were reported
in the consolidated statements of income. Derivatives
for which hedge accounting was adopted are excluded
from the table above.

(b) Currency-Related Transactions

(2) Market Values:
The market values listed represent the closing price
on the Tokyo International Financial Futures Exchange
and other exchanges at the consolidated balance sheet
date. The market values of over-the-counter transac-
tions are calculated mainly by using the discounted
present value or an option pricing model.

Currency-related transactions for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows:

Millions of Yen

2002 2001

Contractual Value or
Notiona! Principal Amount

Contractua! Value or
Notional Principal Amount

Maturity Market Unrealized Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over One Year Value Gain (Loss) Total over One Year Value Gain (Loss)
Currency Swaps
Total ¥582,380 ¥330,387 ¥(5,570) ¥(5,570) ¥897,139 ¥583,535 ¥(5,970) ¥(5,970)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2002
Contractua! Value or
Notional Principal Amount
Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over One Year Value Gain (Loss)
Currency Swaps
Total $4,372,223  $2,480,389 $(41,824) $(41,824)

(1) Derivatives mentioned above were marked to market
and the unrealized gain and loss were reported in the
consolidated statements of income. Swaps for which
hedge accounting was adopted and are mentioned in (3)
below were excluded from the table above.

(2) Market Values:

Market values are calculated by using the present
value of estimated cash flows,

(3) Certain swaps were accounted for on an accrual basis
based on the report issued by the JICPA, “Temporary

" . Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Ac-
counting for Foreign Currency Transactions in the
Banking Industry.”



Contract value or notional principal of the currency swaps described in (3) was as follows:

Miilions of Yen

2002 2001
Contractual Value or Contractual Value or
Notianal Principal Amount Notional Principal Amaunt
Market Unrealized Market Unrealized
Total Value Gain (Loss) Total Value Gain (Loss)
Currency Swaps
Total: ' * ¥35,797 ¥(229) ¥(229) ¥207,129 ¥(12,665)  ¥(12,665)
- - Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2002
Contractual Value or
Noticnal Principal Amount
Market Unrealized
Total Value Gain (Loss)
Currency Swaps
Total $268,752 $(1,723) $(1,723)

Forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options that were marked to market and reported in the consolidated state-

ments of income were excluded from the table mentioned on page 62.
Contract values of the forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options described above were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen 1.8, Dollars E

2002 2001 2002 'i.

Contractual Value Contractual Value Contractual Value :

Foreign Exchange §

- Forward Contracts:- - | g

Sold ¥198,997  ¥212,472 $1,493,979 B

~ 'Bought 163,201 © 106,105 1,225,234 ;;;ég
. Currency COptions: o o ) o ;g.»;,..;?
Sold 64,855 23,156 486,903 -

Bought 97,939 24,706 735,279 g

(¢) Equity-Related Transactions

Equity-related transactions for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2002 2001 2002
Contractual Market Unrealized Contractual Market Unrealized Contractual Market Unrealized
Value Value Gain (Loss) Value Value Gain (Loss) Value Value Gain {Loss)
Equity Index Futures:
Sold ¥ 55 ¥— ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ $ 417 $ — $ —
Bought 225 (3) (3) — — — 1,694 (27) (27)

(1) Derivatives mentioned above were marked to market
and the unrealized gain and loss were reported in the
consolidated statements of income.

(2) Market Values:

The market values listed represent the closing price on
the Tokyo Stock Exchange and other exchanges at the
consolidated balance sheet date.
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{(d) Bond-Related Transactions
Bond-related transactions for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
Notiona} Notionat Notional
Principal Market Unrealized Principal Market Unrealized Principal Market Unrealized
Amount Value Gain {Loss) Amount Value Gain {Loss} Amount Value Gain (Loss)
Bond Futures (Listed): | ’
Sold ¥63,637 ¥(376) ¥(376) ¥1,492 ¥1 ¥ 1 $477,757 $(2,825) $(2,825)
Bought 60,905 486 486 — — — 457,247 3,656 3,656
(1) Derivatives mentioned above were marked to market (2) Market Values:
and the unrealized gain and loss were reported in the The market values listed represent the closing price on
caonsolidated statements of income. the Tokyo Stock Exchange and other exchanges at the

consolidated balance sheet date.

{e) Commodity Derivatives Transactions
T_he Bank and its subsidiaries have no outstanding positions arising from commodity derivatives transactions.

(f) Credit Derivatives Transactions
Credit derivatives transactions for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows:

é Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

3 2002 2001 2002
' _U: Notional Notional Notional

.g ; Principal Market Unrealized Principal Market Unrealized Principal Market Unrealized

§ : Amount Value Gain (Loss) Amount Value Gain (Loss) Amount Vaiue Gain (Loss)

L Credit Default Option: o
Sold ¥41,651 ¥(568) ¥(568) ¥— ¥ ¥— $312,702 $(4,271) $(4,271)

i g‘f, Bought 8,664 31 31 — — — 65,045 237 237
L8 ,

< .

8 (1) Derivatives mentioned above were marked to market (3) “Sold" stands for accepting credit risk and "bought”

2 and the unrealized gain and loss were reported in the stands for transferring the risk. N

consolidated statements of income.

{2) Market Values:
The market values are calculated by using the present
value of estimated cash flows or other models.

The following appropriation of earned surplus of the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2002, was approved at the
stockholders’ meeting held on June 28, 2002.

Millions of - o Thousands of

Yen U.S. Dollars

Transfer to Legal Reserve . ¥ 692 $ 5,195
Dividends:

Series 2 Preferred (¥6.50 per Share) 484 3,637

Series 3 Preferred (¥2.42 per Share) 1,452 10,901

Common (¥0.56 per Share) 1,521 11,423

Total ¥4,149 $31,156
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Shinsei Bank, Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated ba{ance sheets of Shinsei Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and subsidfaries as of
March 31; 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash fiows for the
years then ended, all expressed in Japanese yen. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank's management.
Ogr responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance W|th audrtmg standards generally accepted in Japan and the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement présentation.'We'believe thar ‘our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

in our 6binion such consd)idated financial stat'emen.ts present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank
and subsidiaries at March 31 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended
in conformrty with accountmg principles and practices generally accepted in Japan.

Our.audit'also comprehended the trans!ation‘ of Jébanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such
translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. Such U.S.
dollar amounts are presented solely for the ccnvenience of readers outside Japan.

kg&‘b;'r(; \ B«:D»@_ mzﬂ;
Tok_yc, Japan- ‘ . .. ) .‘
June 28, 2002 L 7 R
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Nan-Consalidated Balance Sheets

Shinsei Bank, Limited
March 31, 2002 and 2001

ﬁ—

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002
ASSETS
Cash and Due from Banks ¥ 376,301 ¥ 558,891 $ 2,825,083
Call Loans 296,559 276,000 2,226,419
Commercial Paper and Other Debt Purchased 2,798 20 21,008
Trading Assets 591,014 596,450 4,437,044
Money Held in Trust 130,328 154,638 978,445
Securities 1,493,048 2,052,403 11,209,071
Loans and Bills Discounted 5,012,174 6,183,585 37,628,937
Foreign Exchanges 149,251 10,771 1,120,504
Other Assets 467,463 374,237 3,509,490
Premises and Equipment 17,375 28,482 130,443
Deferred Discounts on and Issuance Expenses for Debentures 345 1,062 2,596
Deferred Tax Assets 17,644 — 132,468
Customers’ Liabilities for Acceptances and Guarantees 183,783 378,993 1,379,753
Reserve for Loan Losses (371,461) (564,290) (2,788,747)
Total Assets ¥8,366,626 ¥10,051,246 $62,812,514
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Debentures ¥2,735,251 ¥ 3,483,957 $20,534,921
Deposits, Including NCDs 2,384,032 3,302,808 17,898,142
Call Money 329,900 255,200 2,476,727
Commercial Paper 1,000 62,000 7,508
Trading Liabilities 347,667 491,856 2,610,116
Borrowed Money 515,061 773,458 3,866,830
Foreign Exchanges 66 142 496
Collateral Related to Securities Lending Transactions 582,198 139,341 4,370,863
Other Liabilities 639,750 545,750 4,802,927
Reserve for Bonuses Payable 7,802 7,021 58,577
Reserve for Retirement Benefits 22,732 19,322 170,666
Reserve for Loss on Disposition of Premises and Equipment 53 3,844 398
Deferred Tax Liabilities —_ 10,084 —_
Acceptances and Guarantees 183,783 378,993 1,379,753
Total Liabilities 7,749,299 9,473,781 58,177,924
Stockholders® Equity:
Capital Stock:
Common Stock 180,853 180,853 1,357,761
Preferred Stock 270,443 270,443 2,030,354
Capital Surplus 18,558 18,558 139,327
Legal Reserve 2,064 — 15,496
Earned Surplus 139,622 91,267 1,048,220
Net Unrealized Gains on Securities Available-for-Sale,
Net of Taxes 5,785 16,342 43,431
Treasury Stock, at Cost (0) — (0)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 617,327 577,465 4,634,590
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ¥8,366,626 ¥10,051,246 $62,812,514




Non-Cansolidated Statements of Income

Shinsei Bank, Limited
For the Years Ended March 31, 2002 and 2001

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2002 2001 2002

Income

Interest Income: ¥163,060 ¥214,418 $1,224,180
Interest on Loans and Discounts 117,813 167,174 884,483
Interest and Dividends on Securities 29,518 21,953 221,609
interest on Receivables under Resale Agreement 0 — 1
Interest on Deposits with Banks 5,271 12,182 39,579
Other Interest Income 10,457 13,109 78,508

Fees and Commissions 10,908 12,222 81,896

Trading Revenue 561 2,340 4,219

Other Operating income 10,448 3,336 78,444

Other Income 46,143 75,235 346,423

Total income 231,123 307,554 1,735,162

Expenses } :

Interest Expenses: 70,508 126,599 529,346
Interest and Discounts bn Debentures 38,375 72,246 288,105
Interest on Deposits 8,417 16,296 63,191
interest on Borrowings and Rediscounts 18,369 29,211 137,913
Interest on Commercial Paper 15 53 118
Other Interest Expenses 5,330 8,791 40,019

Fees and Commissions 3,441 2,231 25,836

Trading Expenses 300 —_ 2,258

Other Operating Expenses 8,210 3,695 61,641

General and Administrative Expenses 66,867 63,163 502,011

Other Expenses 42,121 20,373 316,227

Total Expenses 191,450 216,063 1,437,319
Income before income Taxes 39,672 91,490 297,843

[ncome Taxes:

Current 137 222 1,034
Deferred (21,204) — (159,189)
Net Income ¥ 60,738 ¥ 91,267 $ 455,998

Net Income per Common Share (Yen and U.S. Dollars) ¥ 20.92 ¥ 32.16 $ 0.16

Diluted Net Income per Common Share (Yen and U.S. Dollars) ¥ 1497 ¥ 2250 $ 0.11

Non-Consolidated Statements of Earned Surplus (Deficit)

Shinsei Bank, Ltd.

For the Years Ended March 31, 2002 and 2001

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2001 2002

Balance at Beginning of Year ¥ 91,267 ¥(280,854) $ 685,194

Appropriation (Disposition):

Transfer to (from) Legal Reserve (2,064) 280,854 . (15,497)
Dividends Paid ' (10,319) - (77,475)
Net Income 60,738 91,267 455,998
Balance at End of Year ¥139,622 $1,048,220

¥ 91267
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Summary of the Share Purchase Agreement (February 9, 2000)

The following is a translation of a8 Summary of the final Share Purchase Agreement for the sale of the former Long-Term Credit Bank of Japan, Limited

1. Basic Nature of the Final Agreement

{1) The Deposit Insurance Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “DIC"),
The Long-Term Credit Bank of Japan, Ltd. (hereinafter referred to
as "LTCB"), and New LTCB Partners C.V. (hereinafter referred to as
“Partners”) agreed and executed the Share Purchase Agreement
{(hereinafter, “Agreement™) summarized herein on February 9, 2000.
{Preamble to Agreement]

(2) Under the Agreement, Partners will purchase approximately 2.4 billion
issued and outstanding common shares in LTCB for ¥1 billion and
300 million new common shares in LTCB for ¥120 billion on a date,
scheduled for March 1, 2000 (hereinatter the “Ciosing”). [Article 1]

(3) Partners will fulfill its obligations refated to the Closing and concomi-
tant transactions under certain conditions, which incfude the payment
of an offset of deficit and a monetary donation by DIC, the occurrence
of no developments having a material adverse effect on LTCB, and the
absence of any breach of the provisions of the Agreement on the part
of DIC or LTCB, which has a materia) adverse effect on LTCB on or
prior to the Closing, [Article 4.1]

(4) DIC will fulfill its obligations related to the Closing and concomitant
transactions under certain conditions, which include the absence of
any material breach of the provisions of the Agreement on the part of
Partners that has a materiat adverse effect and the absence of any
breach of Partners’ representation to submit the list of proposed
directors on or prior to the Closing. (Article 4.2]

(5) Except in the event that the parties to the Agreement decide to post-
pone the Closing, the Agreement will terminate if not executed by
June 1, 2000, However, if DIC and Partners agree in writing, the
Agreement can terminate. If the Closing does not take place on the
specified date as a result of non-satisfaction of the conditions speci-

- fied in (3) and (4), all the parties to the Agreement shall make their
best endeavor to satisfy such condition(s). [Article 12]

2. Method of Acquisition, Payment, and Related Matters

(1) Partners will purchase from DIC within the issued and outstanding
shares of LTCB (which comprise approximately 2.4 billion common
shares and 100 million preferred shares) the full amount of common
shares (excluding 212 shares that are less than the minimum trading
unit of 1,000 shares) for consideration of ¥1 billion. [Article 3.1]

(2} DIC will continue to hold approximately 74.5 million issued and
outstanding preferred shares of LTCB, and the remaining approxi-
mately 25.5 million preferred shares will be canceled without
compensation. {Article 3.2]

Note: The outstanding preferred shares were originally underwritten by the Resolution
and Collection Bank (so-called at that time) under the provisions of the Law
Concerning Special Measures for Early Stabilization of Finance (repealed) for
consideration of ¥130 billion. Accompanying the commencement of the
temporary nationalization of LTCB, these shares were transferred to DIC without
consideration. The current terms of these preferred shares are: Dividend rate,
1% per annum; convertible to common shares at a conversion price of ¥180
per share, which tecame effective on October 1, 1999, and remains in effect
through mandatory conversion; mandatory conversion date, 2008, but conversion
is possible at any time before that date.

3. Capital Reinforcement and Capital Ratio

(1) Partners will subscribe for 300 millicn newly issued common shares
of the Reprivatized LYCB for consideration of ¥120 biflion (¥400 per
share). [(Article 3.2]

(2) The Reprivatized LTCB will request the government to subscribe to
600 million newly issued nonvoting, preferred, and non-par value
shares for consideration of ¥240 billion (¥400 per share). These
shares will be issued under the Law concerning Earlier Sound
Operation of Financial Functions and with the condition that the Repri-
vatized LTCB is a financial institution categorized as having sound
shareholder equity (subject to the condition that as of the date of
approval, the Reprivatized LTCB will have achieved a capital adequacy
ratio of 4%). Other terms and conditions of this issue will be as
follows. [Articte 3.2 and 3.4]

* Holders may convert the preferred shares into common shares on
or after the August 1 following the fifth anniversary of the date of
issuance.

« On the August 1 following the fifth, sixth, and seventh anniversaries
of the date of issuance, the conversion price will be adjusted to the
lower of ¥400 or market price (or net asset value per share prior to
listing) but under no circumstances will the conversion price be less
than ¥300 per share.

* Conversion of the preferred shares will be mandatory on the August
1 following the seventh anniversary date of the issuance.

 Dividends will be decided by the Financial Reconstruction Commission
(hereinafter "FRC"). C

Note: After conversion of the outstanding preferred shares mentioned in 2. (2), the

maximum percentage of ownership by DIC will be 33.0%.: .

(3) The capitel adequacy ratio will be approximately 13% (on the basis
described as follows, which is after realization of unrealized gains on
shareholdings).

4. Oftset of the Deficit by DIC and Related Matters
(1) DIC will make an offset of the deficit and a monetary donation based
" on the Temporary Nationalization Account of the non-consolidated bal-
ance sheet of LTCB. The balance sheet will be prepared based on
Japanese GAAP applicable to the fiscal year ending March 31, 2000,
[Article 2.1 and 2.2] . - .

(2) DIC will make an initial payment to LTCB prior to the Closing based on
the Preliminary Base Date Balance Sheet (scheduled for February 29,
2000, the date prior to the Closing) under Articles 62 and 72 of the
Financial Reconstruction Law. Following the Closing, the final payment

will be confirmed and adjustment will be made based on the Definitive
Base Date Balance Sheet. (Article 2.3 and 2.4]

(3) The Definitive Base Date Balance Sheet will be prepared by LTCB
and audited by LTCB's independent public accounting firm, then pre-
sented to Partners following approval by DIC. Partners wili have its
accounting firm examine the balance sheet, and, if there are differ-
ences of opinion regarding any items {other than (oan assets and
certain other items) the accounting firm appointed by Partners will
discuss the points of difference with LTCB's accounting firm. If the
discussions do not resolve the differences, a third accounting firm wiil
be asked to provide an opinion. DIC and Partners will respect the
judgment of the third accounting firm. However, rights to file a suit to
solve the difference of opinions should be reserved by both parties.
[Article 2.4] :

(4) If the receipt by LTCB of any payments from DIC result in a duty to
pay corporate income or other taxes, this will be taken into consider-
ation in setting the final amount of the offset of the deficit and
monetary donation. (Article 2.5]

5. Treatment of Shares Held by LTCB

(1) Listed shares held by LTCB will be sold as provided for in items (2)
through (7) below. The unrealized vaiue of these shares, a total of
¥250 billion will be realized and used to boost the capital of the
Reprivatized LTCB.

(2) LTCB has prepared a list of its shareholdings as of January 31, 2000,
and provided it to Partners, showing the issuer, the number, the book
value, and the market vaiue on that date. Those shares showing unre-
alized losses on that date will be sold before the Closing to DIC (if
they are the type of shares covered in (5) below) or sold in the market.
(The sales price to DIC will be that shown in the list.) [Article 7.1]

(3) Partners will select listed shares from the list prepared by LTCB that
have sufficient unrealized gains to raise the capital ratio of the
Reprivatized LTCB to 4%, and these will be designated Shares for
First Sale. Partners will then prepare a list of Shares for Second Sale
with tota! unrealized gains equivalent to the gains obtained from the
first sales subtracted from ¥250 billion. Partners will notify DIC and
LTCB of the content of these lists of shares for sale. [Arlicle 7.3)

(4) Listed stocks with unrealized gains other than those in the Shares for
First Sale and Shares for Second Sale will be sold prior to the Closing.
Shares for First Sale will be sold on the day of the Closing, and Shares
for Second Sale will be sold within 90 days following the Closing.
These stocks will be soid to DIC (if they are the type of shares covered
in (5) below) or in the market. (Whether sales will be made to DIC or
into the market will be decided at the time that the list mentioned in
(3) is prepared.) Sales to DIC will all be made at the prices contained
in the list. [Article 7.4)

{5) Shares whose ownership is deemed necessary for the businesses of
the Reprivatized LTCB will be purchased by DIC and then entrusted
to LTCB Trust & Banking. DIC will not sell these shares for five years
without the consent of the Reprivatized LTCB. The nominal ownership
and actual voting rights of these shares witl be retained by LTCB or
LTCB Trust & Banking, and the Reprivatized LTCB will be able, in
principle, to purchase these from DIC at a fair price at any time. In
the event the purchase of these shares from DIC results in a loss for
DIC, DIC will have the right to refuse such purchase requests from the
Reprivatized LTCB. (When these shares enter their fifth year or longer
of being held in trust and DIC refuses an offer from the Reprivatized
LTCB to sell, the term in trust will be extended one year from the time
of refusal. The same pertains to refusals made during the period of
extension.) However, for specified stocks for which LTCB gives notice
in writing (up to two notifications are possible)-folfowing such notice
DIC may sell the specified stacks without the consent of LTCB. In
such cases, for a period of five years from the date these shares are so
specified, LTCB will have first priority purchase rights for such stocks
(the right to purchase such stocks on the same conditions as the most
favorable offer to DIC from a third party). [Article 7.61

(6) LTCB may sell those stocks not necessary for its businesses at a fair
price into the market or to DIC (as specified in (7) below). In the
event DIC purchases such stocks, it will not be obligated to place
these in trust with LTCB Trust & Banking. [Article 7.6)

(7) When LTCB is thinking of selling stocks held by LTCB to a third party,
consultations shall be hetd with DIC in advance. DIC will not oppose
such sales, but it will have the right, depending on stock market
conditions, to designate itself as a purchaser, and purchases of such
stocks can be made at fair market price. [Article 7.5)

(8) LTCB will endeavor to sell unlisted stock—with the exceptions of
shares of designated subsidiaries, restricted shares (fractional shares,
numbers of stock less than the trading unit, and shares which cannot
be sold for legal reasons for at least five years even with the consent
of the issuer}, and shares of failed issuers—prior to the Closing and
for five years following the Closing to DIC or third parties. The profit or
loss on such sales (the difference between the fair price at the time of
sale and the value at the base date) over the five-year period following
the Closing will belong to DIC. For such stock that cannot be sold, the
difference five years after the Closing between the fair price and the
book value on the base date will belong to DIC. {Article 7.1 and 7.2}

(9) LTCB will continue to hold shares of designated subsidiaries, restricted
shares, and shares of failed issuers. [Article 7.1]



6. Sale of Reprivatized LTCB Shares Held by DIC

(1) When the market value of shares in the Reprivatized LTCB held by DIC
exceeds ¥500 billion, the Reprivatized LTCB can request DIC to sell
a cerfain number of its common shares at fair market price and to
convert the preferred shares held by DIC into common stock. [Article
3.5

Notes: 1. If the price of the Reprivatized LTCB’s common stock reaches ¥440 per
share, the market value of stock heid by DIC on a commaon stock conversion
basis will reach ¥500 billion.

. If the price of the Reprivatized LTCB's common stock rises to ¥465 per
share and all preferred shares mentioned in 2. (2) above are converted to
common shares at this price and then sold, the capital gain of DIC on
outstanding preferred shares would be ¥250 biliion.

(2) Consent to such requests shall not be unreasonably withheld by DIC.

[Article 3.5) : :

n

7. Continuous Ownership of Loan-Related Assets
(1) The Reprivatized LTCB will retain ownership of ail loan-related assets
that were determined by the FRC to be “assets appropriate for LTCB
to continue to own” (hereinafter, “Appropriate Assets”). {Article 101
(2) For the Reprivatized LTCB to maintain good relationships with borrowers
of loan-related assets, Partners represents that it will have the
Reprivatized LTCB manage its loans based on the following basic poli-
cies for at least three years from the Closing. Specifically, uniess com-
pelling reasons otherwise require, the Reprivatized LTCB (i) will not
self the foan-refated assets, {ii) will not coflect ioans abruptiy, and
(iii} will meet the proper finance needs of borrowers by, for example,
renewals and provision of seasonal funds. [Article 11]
Notes: 1. The term “not collect abruptly” in (2) above means that the Reprivatized
LTCB will honor borrowers' contractual rights in respect of the.relevant due
date and will not change the due date adversely against the borrower.
Instances of "compelling reasons” referred to above shall mean in the case
of (i) arranging loan participations, securitization of loans, and other similar
activities that are undertaken for providing supplementary sources of financ-
ing for the Reprivatized LTCB's operations and are not contrary to the intent
of protecting the borrower. In the cases of {ii) and (iii), compelling reasons
include circumstances where it is reasonably foreseeabie that the
Reprivatized LTCB would incur losses if it did not collect or it consented to
renewals.

g

8. Reserves .

Reserves will be provisioned according to the results of self-assessments
conducted under the Financial Inspection Manuals issued by the Financial
Supervisory Agency and the reserve guidelines established by the Japanese
institute of Certified Public Accountants.

9. Warranty of Loan-Related Assets s N

{1) Under the Agreement, DIC will be deemed to have transferred loan-
r8e|1a;(1e)d assets to the Reprivatized LTCB as of the Closing. [Article

. ] o T

(2) tf, during the three years after the Closing, a Defect is found with
respect to any loan-related assets and the value of the asset declines
20% or more, {he Reprivatized LTCB shall have the right to cancel its
purchase of such assets of the relevant borrower(s) by exercise of this
right, retroactively to the Closing. [Article 8.1 (1))

(3) If the cancellation right is exercised, the Reprivatized LTCB will trans-
fer the asset to DIC, and DIC shali pay the Reprivatized LTCEB the
Original Value of the asset (after subtracting reserves set aside against
the loan, hereinafter, “Original Value” shall mean the value of assets
net of loan loss reserves), (If there have been repayments of principal,
these will also be subtracted from Original Value.) [Article 8.2 (5)]

{4) The decline in asset value of 20% or more, mentioned in (2) above,
shall mean that total Current Value (after deduction of reserves, here-
inafter “Current Value"” shall mean the value net of loan loss reserves)
of all claims against a single borrower has declined 20% or more in
comparison with Original Value. [Article 8.1 (4)] :

(5) “Defect,” mentioned in (2) above, shall mean that for those loans
judged to be “Appropriate for LTCB to continue to own" by the FRC
prior to Closing circumstances are deemed to have changed or become
untrue within three years from the base date. Defects will not include
those cases where event(s) causing the change or leading to circum-
stances no longer being true are attributable solely to Partners or the
Reprivatized LTCB after the purchase of LTCB. [Article 8.1 (2)]

(6) In cases where the basis for judging certain assets to be Appropriate
used by the FRC is not clearly indicated (for example, claims on
normal borrowers are, in principie, deemed to be Appropriate), and
certain objectiva event(s) indicating problems related to specific bor-
rowers is (are) identified, such event(s) shall be deemed as prima
facie evidence of the existence of a Defect. [Articie 8.1 (2)}

Note: For example, if, within three years of the Closing, principal or interest on loans
to a borrower classified immediately prior to the Closing as normal become
overdue three months or langer, the Reprivatized LTCB can presume that a
Defect exists.

(7) If the Reprivatized LTCB receives a formal request from a borrower for
forgiveness of indebtedness and accepts this request, the cancellation
rights can no longer be exercised by the Reprivatized LTCB for this
borrower. (Article 8.1 (5)]

(8) Loan-related assets for which the cancellation right applies shall be
those in excess of ¥100 million to a single borrower and shall apply
to loan-related assets renewed and rolled over after the Closing, which
are effectively the same as loan-related assets at the time of the
Closing, but excluding new ones. [Article 8.1 (1))

(9) If an event of force majeure, such as war, natural calamity, or economic
depression, occurs within three years from the Closing leading to a
deterioration of the condition of barrowers, the payment responsibilities

of DIC will be limited. if an event that appears to be force majeure oc-
curs, DIC and the Reprivatized LTCB shall hold discussions in good
faith as to whether the event constitutes force majeure and whether
the deterioration of the condition of the obligor was due to force majeure
and then seek to determine a fair sharing of the burden between DIC
and the Reprivatized LTCB. [Article 8.3)

(10) If cancellation rights are exercised, the Reprivatized LTCB shall give
notice to DIC on a quarterly basis. If DIC does not consent to the
Reprivatized LTCB's determination and discussions do not lead to a
resolution of the disagreement, the matter will be considered by an
independent accounting firm chosen jointly in agreement by DIC and
the Reprivatized LTCB. Both parties will respect the results of the
accounting firm’s deliberations, but, in the event the dispute is not
resolved, the parties may present the matter to courts of law.
[Article 8.2)

(11) The Agreement also deals with the details of Defects in loan-reiated
assets, inciuding commitment fines and other arrangements. {Articie
8.1 and other sections of the Agreement]

10. Measures to Reduce Credit Risk of Derivatives
DIC will reimburse the Reprivatized LTCB for losses incurred when
counterparties to derivative transactions with LTCB go into bankruptcy or
otherwise cannot meet their obligations. This applies to derivative transac-
tions outstanding at the base date and covers fosses of ¥5 biifion or more
incurred within five years from the Closing.

11. Board of Directors and Management [Article 9]
(1) Masamoto Yashiro is scheduled to become Chairman and Representa-
tive Director, President, and Chief Executive Officer. )

(2) A majority of the directors will be Japanese nationals. )
(3) The foliowing are scheduled to become directors of the Board: Takashi
Imai, Hirotaro Higuchi, Timothy Collins, and J. Christopher Flowers,

(4) Pau! Volcker has consented to serve as senior advisor.

12, Representations and indemnification [Article 5]

(1) As_is common in corporate acquisition contracts, the Agreement
includes representations and indemnification matters related to DIC
and Partners. - -

Note: For example, DIC represents to Partners that certain matters related to LTCB
are true and correct. These include compliance with relevant laws, possession
of necessary permits and licenses for its operations, absence of viofations of
intellectual property rights, appropriateness and validity of its lending
transactions, accuracy and fairness of its financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 1999, and the six months ended September 30, 1889,
accuracy of its tax returns, and other matters. Partners represents as true and
correct the names of investors in Partners, the percentage ownership, authority,
summary of the decision-making processes, and the adequacy of funds to
complete the acquisition.

(2) DIC also agrees to indemnify Partners in the event that certain repre-
sentations are subsequently found incotrect. For example, if there is
any incorrectness of any of the representations for corporate tax, efc.,
with respect to LTCB that causes the Reprivatized LTCB to pay any
corporate tax, etc., DIC guarantees to indemnify Partners if DIC's rep-
resentations are found incorrect at any time during the five-year period
following the Closing. For matters other than taxation, the period for
indemnification is three years. (The Reprivatized LTCB must notify
DIC of the exact circumstances—occurring within the three-year pe-
riod—which lead to losses, but determination of the amount of dam-
ages through litigation may go beyond three years.) Indemnity for
breach of representations for matters other than taxation shall not be
paid if the total amount of damages is ¥5 billion or less, but when
damages exceed ¥5 billion, DIC is liable to pay ¥ 100 million or more
per breach of representation. lndemnification for corporate tax, etc.,
is based on the amount of tax actually paid.

(3) Partners is liable for breach of representations for three years follow-
ing the Closing. (DIC must provide notice to Partners of any breach
that occurs within the three-year period and leads to damages, but
determination of the amount of damages through litigation may go
beyond three years.) Indemnity for breach of representations shall not
be paid if the total amount of damages is ¥5 billion or less, but, when
damages exceed ¥5 billion, Partners is liable to pay ¥100 million or
more per breach of representation.

13, Covenants [Article 6}

DIC and LTCB promise to abide by covenants that are normally included
in corporate acquisition contracts from the time of the signing of the
Agreement through the Closing.

Note: For example, DIC promises to cause LTCB to continue to operate its business in
a proper manner consistent with sound banking practices. DIC also promises
not to allow LTCB to sell important assets, with the exception of assets that are
not Appropriate for LTCB to own, change its Articles of Incorporation, or engage
in any action that would lead to breach of representations. For its part, LTCB
promises not to conduct any capital-related transactions, such as stock splits or
issuance of new stocks, incur any indebtedness that would be inconsistent with
sound bank management, make any acquisition, or execute any contract or
agreement which would have 2 material adverse effect. From the time of the
signing of the Agreement through the Clesing, LTCB must provide reasonable
access to information related to LTCB's finances and aperations in response to
reasonable requests from Partners.

Notes: 1. Information in brackets, such as {Article 6], refers to sections of the
Agreement.
)}, The source of the information contained herein is a document prepared
by the Secretariat of the Financial Reconstruction Commission entitled
Summary of the Final Agreement Regarding the Acquisition of The Long-
Term Credit Bank of Japan.
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Organization

As of July 22, 2002

Banking Infrastructure
* Group

Institutional Banking
Group

Risk Management

r1 Nomination and Compensation Committee Secretariat Group
Retail Banking
Group
<Chief of Staff> _
Board of Directors CEO . Management Committes Legal and Compliance Division
- (Legal Department)
Internal Audit Division*- Office of Executives i
{Investigation Department) . Relationship
- Group
1 Audit Committee
- Finance Group
Statutory Auditors | Board of Statutory Auditors Office of Statutory Auditors

Corporate Strategy Division

Credit Assessment Division

* The Internal Audit Division
reports not only to the
President but also to the
Audit Committee directly.

New York Representative Office
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Major Subsidiaries and Affiliated Company

As of March 31, 2002

Major Subsidiaries

Voting Interest (%)

Shinsei Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 100.00%

Shinsei Information Technologies Co., Ltd. 100.00

Shinsei Business Service Co., Ltd. 100.00

Shinsei Real Estate Valuation Services Co., Ltd. 100.00

The Shinsei Card Co., Ltd. 10G.00

Shinsei Securities Co., Lid. 100.00

Shinsei Bank Finance N.V. 100.00

BM Finance Co., Ltd. 0.00

BM Enterprise Co., Ltd. 0.00

Major Affiliated Company under Equity Method

BlueBay Asset Management Limited 25.00

Corporate Information

Established Number of Stockhoiders 4 Network Meguro Branch

1952 Americas: Hachioji Branch
Stockholders New York Representative Office Yokohama Branch

Fiscal Year New LTCB Partners C.V. {*) Grand Cayman Branch Fujisawa Branch

From April 1 to March 31

Paid-in Capital
¥451,296 million

Number of Shares Authorized

Common Stock:

5,000,000,000

Preferred Stock:
674,528,000

Number of Shares Issued
Common Stock:
2,717,075,212

Preferred Stock:

Series 2 74,528,000
Series 3 600,000,000

(98.94% of common stock)
GGR Cayman L.P,
(1.05% of common stock)

Domestic:

Shinsei Bank Finance N.V.

Head Office (Tokyo)

Nagoya Branch
Kyoto Branch
Osaka Branch

Deposit insurance Corporation of Japan
(100.00% of series 2 preferred stock)

Resolution and Coflection Corporation
(100.00% of series 3 preferred stock)

(As of March 31, 2002)

*Parties investing in New LTCB Partners inciude:
UBS/Paine Webber (U,S.A.), Deutsche Bank (Ger-
many), Mellon Bank Corporation (U.S.A.), The Bank
of Nova Scotia {Canada), Banco Santander Central
Hispano (Spain), RIT Capital Partners (U.K.), GE Capi-
tal Commercial Finance (U.S.A.), Travelers Investment
Group, inc. (U.S.A.), ABN-AMRQ Bank (Netherlands)
and Ripplewood Holdings Group (U.S.A.}

Sapporo Branch
Sendai Branch
Kanazawa Branch
Omiya Branch
Tokyo Branch
lkebukuro Branch
Ueno Branch
Kichijoji Branch
Shinjuku Branch
Hibiya Branch
Roppongi Branch
Shibuya Branch
Hiroo Branch

Umeda Branch
Namba Branch
Kobe Branch
Hiroshima Branch
Takamatsu Branch
Fukuoka Branch
(As of July 22, 2002)
Sub-branches (ATM only):
Keikyu Station Bank
3 locations
Co-managed under a tie-up
with 1Y Bank Co., Lid.
3,573 focations
(As of March 31, 2002}

For further information, please contact
Corporate Communications Division

SHINSE! BANK, LIMITED

1-8, UCHISAIWAICHO 2-CHOME,
CHIYODA-KU, TOKYO 100-8501, JAPAN
Tel: 81-3-5511-5111 Fax: 81-3-5511-5505
URL: http://www.shinseibank.co.jp

£-mail: webmaster@shinseibank.co.jp
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